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A KEPOKTEE AT LAEGE
GARM5ON

AG R E A T ~mu t»v A in e r i c a n t 
mrm h.nt responded with some 
measure ci bewilderment when, 

on March I, He7. thev h.«nl the news 
that Jim Garnsoa, the. District At­
torney of Orkins Parish. l^umiana, 

„ had arrevd a prominent New Orleans 
•citizen, Chy L, Shaw, fur "partk'ipa- 

. tion in a conspiracy to murder John F.
Kennedy." The conclusions of the

curtly told him, "At this stage, we arc 
supjx>wd to lie closing door*, not own­
ing them." If later turned out that 
some of the doors kit ajar hut un- 
o|»rncd led to associates <4 Oswald** in 
New Orleans, so it seemed entirely 
Conceivable tn me that Garrison just 
might have stumbled upon some valu­
able information that the Commission 
had, for one reason or another, tidc-

Warren Commission, published some 
two and a halt tears before, had of­
fered the authoritative judgment that 
Lee Harvey Oswald alone was reqion- 
sible for the Assassination. And although 
a host of doubts were subsequently 
raked concerning the adequacy of 
the Warren Commission** investigation 
and the reliability of its conclusions, it
seemed incredible that the New Or-
leans District Attorney could declare, as 
Garrison had, "Mr staff and I solved 
the assasdnation weeks ago. I wouldn't 
My this if wc didn't have the evidence 
beyond a shadow cf a doubt.’* Indeed, 
the possibility that a local prosecutor 
had found the answers to questions that 
had baffled the investigative resources 
of the federal government seemed so 
remote to most journalists that, soon • 
after the initial stir provoked by Shaw’s 
arrest, news of the ‘‘assassination plot" 
was generally relegated to the back
pages and treated about as seriously as 
dying-Mucer reports.

I, for one, however, was prepared to 
believe that Dwrkt .Attorney Garri- 
Son’s claims might have some substance 
to them. In the course of writing my 
book "Inquest," T had found that the 

, Warren Commissam's investigation had 
been severely constrained both by bu­
reaucratic pressures exerted from with­
in and by limits of time imposed from 
without. Far front being the rigor­
ous and exhaustive examination that 
it was taken to be, the Commission's 
work was, at certain crucial points, 
reduced to little more than an ex­
ercise in the cUrwcition of super­
ficial evidence. When one delved mArc 
deeply, some far mere difficult problems 
than any acknowledged by the Com­
mission began to appear. Even members 
of the Commission's own staff found 
this to be true. For example, when one 
staff lawyer suggested, late in the in­
vestigation, that it might be worthwhile 
to look further into the partly cor­
roborated claim of one witness that 
Oswald had been Associated not long 
before the ASsassirutxMi with two un­
identified Cuban exiles, his superior

stepped.
Consider, for example, a story at 

the rout of Garrison's investigation, 
which involved a meeting among Os­
wald and three men — David William 
Ferric, Carlos Quiroga, and W, Guy 
JhniMcr—<ill of whom the Warren 
Commission ha<l had reason to be in­
terested in. Kerrie, who, according to
rhe testimony of one Commission wit-
nets, commanded a unit of the Civil 
Air Patrol in which Oswald may have 
been a member briefly, had been ar- 
rcsted in New Orhans shortly after the 
assassination, on a lip that he was in­
volved with Oswald, and then released. 
Carbr. Quiroga, a prominent Cuban 
exile, had visited Oswald's home several 
thnev in New Orleans, for .the purpose, 
he alleged, <>f appraising Oswalds pro- 
Castro activities. W. Guy Banister, a 
private detective known to he .associated 
with ami-Castro .activists in New Or-
kin*, had an office in a building whose 
address appeared on some of the pro-’ 
Castro literature (h itOswald occnMon- 
ally handed out on the streets. All 
this information was in (he hands of the 
Commission, yet none of these three 
men was questioned by the Commis­
sion or its staff. It seemed to me that 
leads such as these, if they had been 
pursued, could have provided a possible 
bridge between the known and un­
known worlds of Lee Harvey Oswald 
in Nev/ Orleans. And once such a

EVER Since he was first elected Dis­
trict .Attorney, in 1961, Jim Gar­

rison—be legally changed his given 
name to Jim from Earling Carothers—> 
has been a Controvcrsi.il figure in New 
Orleans. He has fought long and hard 
against prostitutes, homosexuals in the 
french Quarter, and the more vuk
ncrabk purveyors of vice, but, according 
to his critics on the Metropolitan Crime 
Commission, he has ncglr. led the 
problem of organized crime in New 
Orleans. "People worry about the 
crime ‘syndicate,' *' Garrison once mkI,
"but the real danger is the political, 
establishment, power massing against 
the individual." tVhcn the city's right 
criminal-court justices exercised their 
statutory right to oversee the financing 
of his anti-vice campaign, Garrison 
charged that their actions "raised in­
teresting questions about racketeer in 
fluences." A court subsequently con 
vkted Garrison of criminally LWiin

hridge was crossed, a whole new set of 
clue* to why Oswald killed the Presi­
dent might have been found.

Could Garrison have discovered such 
a bridge? Skeptics tended tn dismiss 
the possibility on the ground that Gar­
rison was a flamboyant and extreme­
ly ambitious politician. According to 
Aaron M. Kohn, the managing direc­
tor of the Metropolitan Crime Coin-
mission of New Orleans, "Garrivm 
never lets the responsibilities of being 
a prosecutor interfere with being a poli­
tician.** However, the fact that Gar­
rison was politically motivated did not 
necessarily—to my mind, at least-— 
preclude the possibility that he might 
he on to something. Whereas it might 
not always have been in the interests of
thr Warren Commission, which was
concerned .a* much with dispelling 
doubts ns with ascertaining Gets, tn 
pursue leads that might generate fur­
ther doubts, or possibly damage the ef­
fectiveness of federal agencies, an am­
bitious politician, it seemed to me, 
might well pursue leads to their con­
clusion, especially since solving "the case 
of the century," .as Garrison called it, 
would certainly enhance his reputation. 
Convinced that it was possible—indeed, 
probable-—that Garrison could find de­
tails of Oswald’s affairs that the Com­
mission had missed, I went to New O<- 
Hms shortly after Garrison announced 
that he was getting to the bottom of 
the "assassination plot” and arrested 
Shaw.
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(h< eight bulges, but the ouuKtxin wj\ twin. Six cardboard cithHH were
reversed by the U.S. Supreme Court, 
in a decision that held that individuals 
have (he right to criticize public offi­
cials even though (he charges may turn 
out to Ke unfounded. Garrison is popu­
larly referred to in New Orleans at 
the Jolly Green GUnt—«n imago con- 

Jural up by his imposing physical 
stature (sh feet six inches) and his 
political glad hand. When I met him, 
in mid-April. his welcome was gra­
cious, if slightly fulsome; he told 
me, almost solemnly, that it was his 
reading of'my book that first set him 
thinking about launching an investiga­
tion of his own. (Later, I learned 
(hat this was a standard greeting, ex­
tended to almost all critics of the

; Warren Commission.) Over a leisure-J 
ly dinner at Broussard’s, Garrison he- i

, gan to (ell me about the conspiracy he 
had uncovered. It was a diffuse nar-j 
raiive, in which it appeared that Os- j 
wald had only been feigning (he role 
hr went to considerable lengths to es­
tablish for himself as a pro-Castroitc 
and had in fact been part of an anti- 
Castro assassination team trained by 
David Ferric. Ferric, in turn, was in 
some impirtant way-—Garrison never 
explained exactly how—-personally in­
volved with Clay Shaw. When a plan

I to shoot Castro was aborted because 
; Oswald could not obtain a visa tn Cuba, 

the assassination team turned its atten­
tion to President Kennedy, and, onj 
November 22, 1963, carried out its 
mission.

How had Garrison discovered this
conspiracy? "h’s exactly like a chess ( 
problem," he explained. "The 'War­
ren Commission moved the same pieces = 
back and forth and got nowhere. I 
made a new move and solved the

• problem." The move he meant .was the 
' arrest of Clay Shaw. He pointed out 
that after Shaw was arrested men from 
the District /Attorney’s office searched 
Shaw’s home, in-the French Quarter, , 
and found in it a cache of new cvi- j

1 dencc, which he suggested that I should 
sec, because it would give me "a new 
perspective on the ease."

Early the next morning, I went to 
the District Attorney’s office, which is 
housed, next to the Parish Prison, in • 
the Criminal District Court Building, 
a massive structure at Tulane Avenue 

: and South Broad. Garrison had not yet.' 
arrived, hut one of his assistants, James 
C. Alcock, told me that Garrison had 

• left word that I should "start going 
; through the evidence." I did so with 

Jones Harris, a New Yorker of inde- । 
pendent means who has devoted the 
better part of (he last three years to a 
private investigation of the assasina-

rvady been rigorously scrutinized by 
Garrison or his .staff, especially since 
Garrison had told several people, in­
cluding me, that one of the main rea­
sons for arresting Clay Shaw on March 
1st was to prevent him from destroy­
ing his personal papers. Six weeks had 
passed, ami yet from what I ,mw it 
appeared that no real investigation of 
Clay Shaw was going on at all but 
only a search for peripheral characters 
connected with David Ferre. If Gar-

1 risen believed that Shaw 
had o|*cnly conspired to kill 
the President, why was the 
inquiry- into his activities 
being treated with such ap­
parent nonchalance?

A discovery that Jones 
Harris made while we were 
going through the papers 
provided considerable in­
sight into the nature of 
Garrison's inrestigation. 
What Harris found was a 
five-digit number that was 
common to both Shaw’s 

; and Oswald’s address

brought out containing pet sonal be- 
bulging* <»f Clay Shaw: fetters, photo­
graphs, financial record*, blueprints for 
renovating houses in (he French 
Quarter, the manuscripts of plays he 
had written years ago, calendars, 
checkbooks, addreu books. In one box 
were a black costume, a net mask, and 
some plastic slippers—all of which 
ShaW had claimed were part of his 
1965 Mardi Gras costume. Alcock 
said that the District .Attorney's start 
had yet to examine all this material, 
and he suggested that Harris and I 
look through Shaw's address books and 
financial records in hopes of discover- 

. ing some information (hat might inter­
est Garrison. We were left alone with

। the evidence.
Though none of these materials as 

far as I could see after examining them, 
had anything directly to do with the 
assassination, the odd way in which 
Garrison treated them d»d give me, 
when I thought about it later, “a new 
perspective on (he case.” 1 recalled that 
«* jwlgc’$ order had forbidden discus­
sion or disclosure of any evidence in 
the case. The very fact that Harris and 
I were allowed to examine objects 
seized from Shaw's home and desig­
nated "evidence" seemed to be a direct 
violation of that order. Why, I won­
dered, should the District Attorney 
risk having his ease thrown out of 
court on a technicality by letting 
outsiders go freely through the evi- 
dence? Moreover, it seemed curious 
that Clay Shaw's papers had not al-

book*. The entry in Shaw's 
hook was "Lev Odom, |’O 
Box 19106. Dalia*. Tex." 
In Oswald's hook, the 
number 19106 was pre­
ceded by the Cyrillic 
letters* d J{ (which, like 
other Russian letters on 
the page, the Warren Com­
mission had assumed were 
made during Oswald's two- 

and-a-half-ycar stay 
in the Soviet Union), 
Though the coinci­
dence of numbers 
proved nothing in it­
self, it was striking, and 
Garrison decided that 
further investigation 
was merited. Shortly 
thereafter, Garrison 
announced to the press 
that he had found the 
entry 'TO 19106" in 
both Oswald's and 
Shaw's address books, 
and that the num­
ber was a "nonexistent 
nr fictional number," 
which removed "the 
possibility of coinci­
dence," Moreover, 
Garrison said that 
'TO 19106" was a 
code that, when deci­
phered, produced Jack 
Ruby's unlisted tele­
phone number, WH 
1-5601, anu "no oth­

er number on earth."
The method by which Garrison "deci­
phered" the .code is worth following. 
Starting with the "scrambled" number 
19106, Garrison "unscrambled" it (by 

choosing the nearest digit, then the 
farthest, thef? the next nearest, etc.) 
to produce the number 16901. Ruby’s 
number was 15601, so by unscram­
bling the digits Garrison managed to 
match the last two digits in the two 
numbers. The next step was to subtract 
1300 from 16901, and—presto— 
15601. Finally, Garrison converted tlx 
prefix ‘TO" to “WH" by a system 
that, according to the prominent cryp­
tographer Irwin Mann, yields at least 
six different prefixes; Garrison chose 
Ruby’s.

A few days after Garrison an­
nounced that he had deciphered the 
code, it became known that (he num­
ber 19106 in Shaw’s address book was 
by no means "nonexistent or fictional." 
PO Box 19106 had been, as Shaw’s 
address bock indicated, the address in 
Dallas of a man named Lee Odom. 
Odom stated that he had been intro­
duced to Shaw in 1966 by the manager



tlx puwbthtv of bunging M<m»4Icm bull-

Ips business address—PO Box 19106, 
Dallas, Texas—with Shaw. In fact, 
Odom's post-vflkc box could n<>t p»s* 
siMy have been the number in Oswald's 
book, because the post-office-box num­
ber 19106 did not exist in Dallas be­
fore it was assigned tn Odom, in 
1965—dong after Oswald’s death, in 
1963. It was clear that Garrison had 
done some questionable interpolating of 
his own in moving from a coincidence 
to a conspiracy. First, he had told news­
men that the number in Oswald’s book 
was PO 19106, although in fact it 
was JI JI 19106. (When a television 
interviewer later asked him how he 
had determined that the prefix was 
PO, rather chan j| JI, he answered, 
with perfect aplomb, “More or less by 
looking at it.”) Then, on the basis of 
his deductions, he had announced that
(he po$t-o/Fce-box number was fic­
tional. Anti, finally, he had converted 
the number in Shaw’s book into Jack 
Ruby’s phone number by rearranging 
the digits, subtracting an arbitrary 
number, and changing the letters “PO” 
to “WH.” Garrison had constructed

Dallas three years before. As their con- 
. vrrsHutn was reported in New Or*

.1 piece of evidence against Clay Shaw 
and had disclosed it to the press. Yet 
the District .Attorney did not seem 
particularly perturbed when questions 
were raised about the logic of his de­
ductions. When he was asked on a lo­
cal television show how the number of 
a post-office box that didn’t exist until 
1965 could have been used to represent 
Jack Ruby’s phone number in 196J, 
he replied, “Well, that’s a problem fur 
you to think over, because you obvious^ 
ly missed'the point.” Indeed, Garrison

involved in this thing.
Senator Long cited defi­
ciencies in the Warren
CommissionS investigation. 
“I think if t were investi­
gating,” he said, “I’d find 
the hundred best riflemen 
in the world and find the ,
i>nes who were in Dallas 
that day.” Garrison recalled 
that in 1963 his office had 
been interested in “a very unusual type •
of person who made a very curious trip j 

counterattacked in a press conference, at a very curious time about the date *
saying, "We are very interested in of the .'isMSMiraifin,'1 and the District* 
knowing who introduced Mr. Odom .Attorney added that he “might want.'

how many bullfights ’“ "“^ g” tack into some of those 
M- । n»___ events.”

to Mr. Shaw,
Mr. Odom has actually produced”'

The individual whom Garrison had 
in mind was David William Ferric, 
and he was, to say the least of it, “a 
very unusual type of person.” Garrison 
later characterized Ferric as both an 
“wd genius” and “a pathetic and tor­
tured creature.” To compensate for 
bring completely hairless, Ferric pasted 
what looked like clumps of red mon­
key fur on his head and wore artificial 
eyebrows. ( Explanations of how Ferric 
lost his hair have become part of the 
folklore of the assassination. William 
W. Turner, author of a so-called “of­
ficial history” of the Garrison investiga­
tion which appeared in Ram^artt, re-

as if this fact were relevant to his in­
vestigation—and “We arc particularly 
interested in clarifying now why there 

. is also ended in Lee Oswald’s address 
book the local'phone number of the 
Central Intelligence r\gcncy.” Using 
an entirely different system of deci­
pherment, Garrison managed to con­
vert the number 1147, which appeared 
in Oswald’s book, to 522-8874, the 
C.LA.’s phone number. Oswald’s codes 
were “subjective,” Garrison said, in 
that they varied from number to num­
ber. There seemed little point in Os­
wald’s having gone through such an
elaborate procedure, however, because
the C.I.A. number that Garrison re- P0^ one speculation that the loss
ferred co wa>—and ©-^listed in the ™*ght have been “a physiological reac-

i<* the ahi-

this? He hims«H noted, in an extended 
interview in Playboy for October, 
1967, that pre-trial publicity prejudicial 
to the defendant “could get our whole 
ease thrown out of court,” yet he him-

r<pnrrd Inr clandestine /light*.

t«onahM U-2 pilot* have reportedly 
experienced the same “li.iirdou phe- 
muncnon.” Fred Powlcdge, after in­
terviewing Garrison, wrote in the

seif had jeopardized his case by rclcas- ; Nrw Rrpubhr that Ferrie’s “interest in 
ing inhumation that was not only homosexuality led him to shave off all 
prejudicial to Clay Shaw but Un- his body hair.” However., the question 
founded. was decisively answered by Harold

Wcislicrg, a critic of the Warren Com- 
IT was aboard a jet flight between i mission, whose Mq>brothcr, Dr. Jack 

New Orleans and New York in • Krty, had treated Ferric for the disease 
late November of 1966 that the Gar- alopecia, which can render its victims 
rison investigation started taking shape, hairless.)
Prompted hy a cover story in Life Rather like Oswald, Ferrie was a 
that called foe a new investigation into ’ failure at virtually everything he tried, 
the assassination, three prominent pas- He (rained for the priesthood, and was 
angers—Senator Russell B. Long, of dismissed from two seminaries as a 
Louisiana; Joseph M. Rauh, Jr., a result of eccentric persona! behavior, 
wealthy New Orleans oilman; and Later, he became a “bishop” in a quasi-' 
District Attorney Jim Garrison—be- political underground cult called the 
gait speculating about the events in Orthodox Old Catholic Church of

North America. Ferric ran a service 
statwm in New Orleans. Dis greatest

letiMft the official magazine of the city’s ambition seems to have been to become
Chamber of Commerce, the three 
agreed that, in Rauh’s words, “. . . it 
would be almost preposterous to believe 
that one num, an individual such as 
Oswald, could have been the only one

: a fighter pilot. In 1950, he wrote to 
: Secretary of Defense Louis A. John­

son, demanding, “When am I going to 
i get the commission, when the Russians 

arc bombing the hell out of 
Cleveland?” In a letter tn 
the commanding officer of 
the First Air Force, he 
wrotr, “There is nothing I 
Would enjoy better than 
blowing the hell out of • 
every damn Russian, 
Communist, Red or what- 
havc-you. .. . Between my 
friends and I we can cook 

up a crew that can really blow them to
• hell. ... I want to train killers, hnw- 
। ever bad that sounds. It is what we 
■ need.” Ferrie never received an Air 

Force commission, but he did succeed 
in bccomfiig the leader of a unit in the 
Civil .Air Patrol (a civilian organization 
made up of volunteers), and he also see 
himself tn training youths in jungle- 
warfare tactics. Oswald, according tn a 
witness before the Warren Commis­
sion named Edward Voehr), may have 
belonged to Ferrie’s outfit for a brief 
time in the nincteen-fiftics, when he 
was a teen-ager. Ferrie was also en­
gaged in a long-term project to dis­
cover a cure for cancer, and it was 
said that at one time he housed thou­
sands of white mice in his apartment in 
New Orleans. Fora while, he was cm- . 
ployed as a pilot for Eastern Airlines, 
but he was suspended, in 1961, as a 
Consequence of an arrest on a morals 
chatge, and later dismissed. /Mter (hat, 
he managed to make a meagre living 
as a free-lance pilot, an independent 
psychologist, and a private detective.

-3-
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.At about the tunc of the B.iv of l\x 
inv.iMoj), in 1**61, he became as-

according to one of them, he Hew fire- 
bomb raids against Cuba and helped 
anti-Castro refugees escape. It has also 
been reported that, in pursuit of his

f’Jot. who nude a number of flights 
with Ferric in order to gam hw con!:- 

i dcnce, and Albcita Fowler, a Cuban 
। exile and the Director of Intel national

AI:S

• xeuTcd in j'^o

I desire to "train killers,” he became in- 
• volvcd in teaching paramilitary tactics 

to anti-Castroitcs ui St. Tammany
. Parish, across Lake Pontchartrain

who made discreet inquiries about Fer- 
ric's activities among anti-Castro exiles. 
Later, a xlf-snled intelligence expert 
using the pseudonym Bill Bexley 
joined Garrison's staff.

from New Orleans.
In 1963, Ferric was employed as a

private investigator for the law firm
then representing Carlos Marcelle, who i 
was reputed to be the head of the New 
Orleans Mafia. Marcello had been de­
ported in an extralegal manner—he 
wav abducted by Justice Department 
agents and put on a plane to Guate- 

, mala. According to nnc story, Ferrie
clandestinely flew Marcello hack into - 

I this country. On the dnv of the assassi- ' 
[ nation, Ferrie claimed, he was in 
’ court, listening to a judge declare 
■ the Marcello deportation illegal. To 
i celebrate the victory, Ferric drove to

The first step was to compile a dos­
sier on Ferric. Cameras were secretly 

I set up across from Feme's apartment, 
; be was followed everywhere he went, 
| and hts friends were questioned about 

his activities. Little came of this sur­
veillance. For further information. 
Garrison turned hack to Martin, whose 
tip had first linked Oswald and Ferric. 
Martin, who told Secret Service agents 
that he suffers from “telephonitis” j 
when’he has taken a drink and that 
it was on such an occasion that he 
telephoned the District Attorney's of- i 
fice about Ferrie, continued to narrate 
a vast number of disconnected yarns 
about Ferric and the assassination. Ac- <

ing in Texas and although 
Quiroga categorical!* denied 
th.it such a mceting had ever 

• taken place, Garrison intense- 
. fled hrs efforts in this direction.

He began digging into the ac­
tivities of anti-Castro Cubans 
and disowcred the sites of

' Texas nn a “goose-hunting" expedi­
tion with two friends. Meanwhile, Gar­
rison’s office received a tip from a 
New Orleans private detective named 
Jack S. Martin to the effect that 

: Ferrie had trained Oswald in marks- 
■’ manship and was his “getaway pi­

lot.” Martin was said tn be a member 
of the same cult in which Ferrie was a 
bishop. On his return to New Orleans,

cording to a typical one of th<I cording to a typical one of these, Ferric 
hypnotized Oswald and then dispatched
him on the assassination mission. Ac­
cording to another. Ferrie had a work­
ing assocution with certain anti-Castro 
activities conducted bi the private de­
tective W. Guy Banister. Garrison 
found this connection especially pro­
vocative, because Banister, up to the 
time of his death, in 1964, main-

Ferric was arrested and questioned, tailed offices tn a building at 54+'
but, according tn F.B.I. reports, Mar­
tin admitted that he had made up the 
whole story, and Ferrie was released.

The F.B.I. may not have thought 
much of Martin's tip, but it was this 
tip that enabled Garrison to begin his 
investigation, in December,.1966, with 
a specific suspect in mind—David Fer­
ric. Garrison set about his work with 
the assistance of a small but industrious 
staff. His chief investigator, a police­
man named Louis Ivon, had requisi­
tioned other members of the New Or­
leans Police Department to do the 
necessary legwork. William H’. Gur- 
vich, a partner in one of the city's larg­
est private-detective agencies, handled 
interrogations and the extraterritorial
aspects of .the investigation*
Bethell, a young British writer who 
was living in New Orleans, was put in 

' charge of research. Assistant District
Attorneys Alcock, Andrew J. Sciam- 
hra, Richard V. Burnes, and Alvin V. 
Oser questioned the more important 
witnesses and prepared the legal 

. groundwork. Other tasks were per- 
. formed by some of Garrison’s personal 
.' friends-—among them Max Gonzales, 

a law clerk in the criminal court and a

what had been two secret training 
camps tn St. Tammanv Parish. Ferrie 
was rumored to have used one of them 

, to train his corps of commands. In 
• the hope of identifying the men under 
: Kerrie's command, Garrison hired Ber­
nardo ‘Forres, a private detective from 

: Miami who claimed to have assisted 
the Secret Service bv spotting poten­
tially dangerrus Cubans during a visit 
President Kennedy made to Miami in 

I 1963. In December, 1966, and Jann- 
; ary. 1967, the investigation was broad­
ened to include various efforts to track

rv. I hesc efforts turned out to be un-
pn.xluctivc but quite — mote
than half the total expenditures—and

activity did not justify the expense. To­
ward the end of January, the Florida 
manhunt was called off.

But Garrison had other leads to fol­
low—notably an old clue from a Newa.np Sirwt, a W,Kk from'the Wil- ;Orl«ns lawyer named Dean Adams

liam B. Reily Company, where
Oswald and one
of the questions the Warren 
Commission had left unan­
swered was why the address 
**544 Camp St.” appeared as 
Oswald's headquarters on 
some pro-Castro literature 
chat he handed out. Since 
Banister’s office was. as Gar­
rison put it, “a mare's-nest of 
anti-Castro activity," Garri­
son postulated that Oswald 
might be’an “agent provoca­
teur" in Banister's employ.

Garrison followed up this 
lead by systematically ques-

Thomas tinning Banister’s former em-
ployew. One of them, a ship­
ping clerk and sometime pri­
vate investigator named David 
F. Lewis, Jr., added richly to 
the developing drama. Lewis 
claimed that he had been wit­
ness to a meeting among Ban­
ister, Ferrie, the anti-Castro 
leader Carlos Quirdp, and a 
person he called Leon Os­
wald, who he later thought

.‘Andrews, Jr. .Andrews’ original story, 
which he told to the Secret Service 
shortly after the assassination, was that 

, Oswald had come to his office a few 
times during (he summer of 1963 in 
the hope of finding some means by 
which the “undesirable” discharge he 
bad been given hr the Marine Corps 
Could be converted into an honorable 
one. The dav after the assassination, 
.Andrews, who was in the hospital un­
der sedation recovering from pneumo­
nia, said he received a phone call from 
a man he knew as Clay Bertrand,' 

whom he described as “a lawyer with­
out a briefcase’’ for local homosexuals. 
According to Andrews, Bertrand.asked 
him to go to Dallas and defend Os­
wald. When Andrews was questioned 
by the F.B.L, he gave several dif­
ferent descriptions of Bertrand, and 
finally said that the character bearing 
that name was merely a figment of his 
imagination. A few months later, he 
again changed his story, telling the 
Warren Commission that he had re­
cently seen Bertrand in a hr, and de­
scribing him as “a boy” who was “5 
hot 8 inches'’ and had “sandy hair.”



<»thcr clues to Bertrand’s identity

Livhder, a Commission lawyer who 
conducted the investigation in this area, 
Mid he was convinced that no such 
person existed.

Garrison nevertheless now decided 
tn pursue the matter further, and gave 
Assistant District Attorney Sciamhra, a 
former boxer known by the nickname thing to incriminate himself.
Moo, a task he referred to as "squeez- The Cuban-exile trail had petered out 

Jng the French Quarter. A crack- in Miami. The Bertrand matter had
down on homosexuals that Garrison been shelved. Garrison’s chief witness
had carried out in 1962 was generally was David Lewis, and, of the four 
thought to have produced a number: 0(1^^,.!,,,, ;n the meeting that Lewis 
informers, hut Sciamhra was unable to described, Oswald and Banister were 
find anyone who had ever heard of dead, Quiroga (according to Garrison) 
Clay Bertrand. Garrison reasoned that - — .
Dean Andrews was probably protecting 
a wealthy client with homosexual as­
sociates, and came up with the idea that 
Clay Bertrand was in reality Chy 
Shaw, a socially prominent retired di­
rector of the International Trade Mart 
in New Orleans. David L. Chandler, 
a Life reporter who worked closely 
with Garrison in the early days of the FULL might be tapping his telephones 
investigation, was present when Gar- that he had made plans a few weeks hr- 
rison first put forward this hypothesis ‘ fntC lo execute a midnight raid on the 
to his staff. According to Chandler,
Garrison offered three arguments fnr 
it. hirst, Shaw had the same first name 
as Bertrand. Second, Shaw was ru­
mored to have friends tn the homo­
sexual world. And, finally. Shaw spoke 
fluent Spanish and, although Andrews 
had never said that Bertrand spoke 
Spanish, Garrison was looking for a told Garrison that he knew a good deal 
conspirator involved in anti-Castro ac- about Ferric's activities in 1961. Ac-
tivitics. Garrison brushed over the fact 
that Shaw—six feet four and a quarter 
inches tall, fifty-four years old, and 
white-haired—hardly fitted Andrews’ 
description of a fivc-foot-cight-inch 
boy with sandy hair. He also ignored 
the question of why Andrews, having 
given a. false description and a false last 

name to protect Ins client, 
would give the client’s correct 
first name.

In any event, Shaw was 
brought in for questioning in 
late December, on the pretext 
that Garrison was attempting 
to tic* up a few loose ends in 
the Warren Report. Accord­
ing to Chandler, it quickly be­
came apparent that Shaw had 
no information io offer about 
Ferric or his activities, and the 
matter was dropped. The Dis-? 
trict Auorncy told his staff to 1

• ‘’forget Shaw.” In January, 
when asked if he knew the 
identity of Clay Bertrand by 
Richard N. Billings, another 
member of Life's staff, Gar­
rison replied, "His real name 
is Clay Shaw, but I don’t

thihk Ju’s

the only suqxct.
Hv February, 1967, the in­

vestigation seemed to be at a
MAfhbull. Ferric obviously
knew that he was under sus­
picion, and it was highly un- 
likclr that he would do anv-

could not be found, and Ferric un­
equivocally denied everything.

At this point, Gordon' Novel, a 
specialist in anti-eavesdropping devices, 
was recommended to Garrison by Wil-

a New Orleans issue. Garrison charged that the news 
. i.......... ..........v „f story had seriously interfered with his

lard E. Robertson,
. automobile dealer who w;is one of

Garrison’s political supporters. (Gar­
rison had been so concerned that the

F.B.I. field office in New Orleans, 
using a water pistol loaded with a 
charge of red pepper to disarm the of­
ficer on duty; he even invited Chan­
dler, the Life reporter, to accompany 
him on the mission, hut (or some reason 
the plan was scrapped.) Upon learning 
that Ferrie was under suspicion, Novel

cording t<» Garrison, Novel claimed 
that Ferric, a Cuban-exile leader 
named Sergio Arcacha Smith, and two 
unidentified Cubans had been involved 
in a "pickup” of arms from a bunker
in Houma, Louisiana, belonging to the

For two days, shortly after the 
Sfrtfw-lrm broke the news of Gar­
rison’s investigation, Ferrie was kept 
under "protective custody,” Billings 

raid was tn acquire arms for an anti- i has reported, at the Fontainebleau 
Castro militia, and Novel stated that a ' Motor Hotel in New Orleans. Ac-

Schlumberger Well .Surveying Curpo- ’ 
ration. Some of the arms were rc- 
jwtcdly deposited in the offices of W. 
Guy Banister. The purpose of" the

C.LA. contact had indulgently pro- cording to a member of Garrison’s 
vided a key to the hunker. Novel staff, this was done at Ferric’s.reqtAst.

i In any he returned tn his ownlater claimed that one of Garrison’s 
ideas for breaking the stalemate his in-’ 
vestigation had apparently reached in­
volved a plot to kidnap Ferric. .Accord­
ing to this story, Ferric was to be shot 
with an atropine dart, injected with 
sodium pentothal, and forced to con-

[ fess. Novel has said, "Garrison asked 
’me to order him such a dart gun so 
that-it wouldn’t appear on his 
office purchase records” after the 
District Attorney "had read 

■ about the idea in one of the* Books 
about the C.I.A.”

The entire investigation might 
have expired quietly for want of

n«*t been for 'sane resourceful

New Orleans Sfnb-fltrm—Rosemary 
Iamc«. J-1^ Dempsey, and David 

Snvdcr. In New Orleans, the financial 
vouchers of the district attorney’s of­
fice arc a matter of public record. By 
piecing together information gleaned 
from these records and through various 
leaks from Garrison’s office, the re- 
porters were able to come up with a 

. fairly accurate picture of the investiga­
tion, even though it was still being kept 
secret. Mrs. lamer wrote an article on 

uhc subject and showed it to Garrison 
on February 16, 1967. He simply 
shrugged and told her, "I will 
neither confirm nor dem’ it.” The 
next day, the store broke. Garrison’s in-, 
vestigation into the assassination of 
President Kennedy was now a public

ctfurts; arrests that were to* have been 
made immediately, he claimed, had 
now tn be deterred for months. More­
over, he announced that he would serk 
private financing in order not to have 
to conduct the inquiry in a "fish- 
bowl.” Two political allies, Joseph 
Rank, Jr., and Willard Robertson, 
thcre<i|>on organized fifty New Or­
leans businessmen into a group that 
called itself Truth or Consequences, 
Inc. Its function was to supply Gar- 

: rison with both funds and moral 
support. Meanwhile, David Ferric told 
a newspaperman that Garrison's inves­
tigation, in which he was suspected of 
being Oswald’s getaway pilot, was 
nothing but "a big joke.” He denied 
that he knew Oswald, and, for good 
measure, added that he was conducting

• his own inquiry into the assassination.

apartment on the evening of February 
21st. The next day, Ferrie was found 
dead. An autopsy indicated that he had 
died of a cerebral hemorrhage caused 
by the rupture of a blood vessel. The

• coroner, Dr. Nicholas Chetta, ruled
out suicide, because a person is 
rarely aware that an aneurysm, 
or weak spot, exists in a Mood ■ 
vessel, and it would he virtually 
impossible to induce a "blow­
out.” He also ruled out murder, 
on the ground chat if the rupture 
had been caused by an external 
blow there would necessarily

-5-



। .Air Patrol unit out fi*»m under what 
’he called the c«*<n:iMnu<rS “qxli.” 

Russ> sod that .it one p>uit, after he
: bad succeeded in breaking Ferrie’s hold 
jover his friend, Ferric had threatened 

to kill him. Later, however, he and 
Ferrie became friends, and worked as 
partner# in selling pornographic films 
imported from Cuba. Ferrie’s main in­
terests, Russo continued, were, first, 
instructing members of hij Civil Air 
Patrol outfit in “the art of fighting 
jungle warfare” and, second, 
his medical research; he was 
developing an aphrodisiac as 
well as a cure for cancer.
But Ferric had said very lit­
tle to him on the subject of 
assassination, except for some 
vague remarks about hoU^ 
easv it would be to shoot a 
President and flee by air­
plane to Cuba or Brazil. 
Rush* indicated that Ferrie 
probably had in mind either 
Eisenhower or the President of Mexi­
co. He did remember, however, that 
Ferrie had Said a few times in (he 
summer of 1963 (hat he would “get" 
Kennedy. Sciamhra then showed Russo 
some photographs. The first one he 
identified was of Sergio Arcacha Smith, 
the Cuban-exile leader. Russo said it 
resembled an actor in one of the por­
nographic films. “To be perfectly hon­
est,” he said, “I looked at the film 
quite a bit.” (Russ<» was mistaken in 
his identification. Garrison’s investiga­
tors later ascertained that the actor in 
the film was not Arcacha Smith.) The 
second photograph he recognized was 
of Chv Shaw. Russo said that Ke 
thought he had seen this man twice be­
fore but that he had never met him; 
The last photograph showed Lee Har­
vey Oswald. Russo thought this person 
was a H'ommate of Ferrie’s, who had 
a beard.

The next day, back in New Orleans, 
Scumbra gave Garrison a preliminary 
oral report on his interview with Russo 
in the presence of Richard Hillings, of 
Lite. Garrison then asked Sciamhra to 
arrange a test for Rus«o using “truth 
Scrum,” or sodium pentothal. The 
“truth serum” was administered to 
Russo the next day by Dr. Nicholas 
Checta. While under the influence of 
the drug, Russo was again questioned 
by Sciambra, though nd transcript was 
nude of the interrogation. Afterward, 
Russo ’ had dinner, with Garrison, 
Sciambra, and Billings, and Sciambra 
told Rus.su that after taking truth se­
rum he had identified a tall man with 
white kinky, hair, and that he had ahe 
said that he had been introduced to 
this man as “Bertrand.” According to

have been (issue damage. and 
none was found. He concluded t^t 
Ferric had died from natural utses 
But the mere fact that a man flaw’d 
of having conspired to assassinate the 
President had died five days after 

. he was publicly implicated m the 
crime wan kttMtwnnl news, and re* 

■ porters flocked to New Orleans. Gar- 
; risen, without waiting for the results 
J of the autopsy, had proclaimed Fer* 

ric’s death a suicide and had interpreted 
a somewhat ambiguous letter that Fer* 

i ric wrote to a friend shortly before 
j his death as a ‘Suicide note.” Garns mi 
; called Ferric “one of history’s most «b 
‘ portant individuals,” and claimed that 
1 an arrest had been only da\* away. 
: “Apparently, wc waited too long/* he 

said. No mention was made of the het 
that Ferric had already been placed 

' under protective custody for two da) ^
Ferric’s death brought a windfall of 

publicity, but Garrison had lost his 
prime suspect. And the hundreds of 
newsmen who had come to New Or* 

' leans could hardly be expected to con* 
tinuc reporting cryptic comments from 
Garrison such as "The key to the 
whole case is through the looking gbss. 
Black is white; white is black.” When 
they asked for hard news, Garrison told 
them that he had "positively shvd the 
assassination of President John F. Ken­
nedy,” and he added that "in the J 
course of time” he would make a treses. 
At that point, most of the out-of-town 
reporters left.

Garrison had promised that invsn : 
would be forthcoming, and appirvnt- : 
)y a number of possible "si^iects were 
considered. Some were drawn from i 
Ferrie’s twilight world of adventurers I 
and self-styled secret agents. Others, • 
according to William Gurvich, were J 
prominent citizens of New Orleans. At 
this point, Garrison received a brief. 
letter from Perry Raymond Rusjix a 
twenty-fiye-year-old Baton Rouge in-, 
surancc salesman, who claimed to have 
known Ferrie. Russo had previously 
approached a number of local reporters, 
but they had shown no interest in him 
after he said that he had never seen 
Oswald and. knew nothing specific 
□bout the assassination. Garrison, how- 

: ever, was very much interested in Rus­
so’s assertion th# he possessed useful 

. information on Ferrie. On February 
25th, the day after Garrison received 
Russo’s letter. Moo Sciamhra was sent 
to Baton Rouge to question Russx

The greater part of the interview 
was confined to uncovering Russo's re- 
btionship with Ferrie. Russo trid So- 

, ambra that he had first met Ferrie in 
[ 1962, when he attempted to get a 
। young friend of his in Ferrie's Civil

Kdhngx Rmxo H»tcd that he did not 
renumber ever having nut anyone 
named Bertrand. G.orK’n attempted 
to rev dvr this embarrassing discrepancy 
bv suggesting t,s R»umgs (hat the truth 
scrum probable jogged' Russo’s mcm- 
in. “Thct asked me a lot of ques­
tions” Russo is reported to have re­
called later. "I could figure out what 
they wanted to know.”

Ilie following dav, Garrison brought 
Russ' to Shaw’s home in the 
French Quarter f<»r a look at 
Shaw, and on March 1st 
Garrison summoned Shaw to 
his office and had him inter- 
rogated for two and a half 
hours, Shaw categorically de­
nied that he knew either Fer­
ric or (hnald and that he 
knew anvthing about the as- 
M$$iwix'n. When the topic 
of using truth scrum came 
up, Shaw sent for a lawyer, 

Salvatore Panzeca. Panzeca agreed tn 
let Shaw take a lie-detector test, pro­
vided that the defense had the right tn. 
approve the. wording of the questions, 
that the results of the test were not dis- 
closed except at a duly authorized court 
preceding, ami that Shaw hail a day’s 
rest before the test. Garrison replied 
that he did not have to agree to any 
conditions. A moment later, he dc- 
chml that Shaw was under arrest, had 
him handcuffed, and led him before 
news photographers to be booked. This 
move. Garrison Liter told me. was “a 
Command decision.” He said he was 
apprehensive that if he released Shaw 
the suspect might “destroy vital .evi­
dence.” This explanation made little 
sense, for Garrison could have ob­
tained a search warrant without arrest- 
ui£ Shaw; no more cause was required 
than (hat he have a confidential in- 
tormant, and he had—Perry Russo. 
Moreover, he had questioned Shaw in 
December, and if Shaw had had in- 
crinriuting evidence in his home it 
would seem likely that he would have 
disposed of it then. But, whatever Gar- 
risen $ motives were, on March I, 
1967,-a week after the death of Fer­
ric, Clav Shaw was arrested for con- 
spiring-to murder John F. Kennedy. *

IN Louisiana, after an arrest has been 
made, the district attorney cither 

presents the case to a grand jury or files 
a “bill of information,” which, under 
the Louisiana code of criminal pro­
cedure, allows a district attorney to 
bring a case to trial without a grand­
jury indictment. In the case of Clay 
Shaw, however, Garrison decided to do 
something that wx<, in his own words, 
“virtually unheard of.” Instead of go-



nice ting ui (.♦arrivin’jntcrr«'gatrd bun. be Md sir-

nary hearing, which take* place before had ever seen Oswald or that Ferric 
a judge and h public. I he purpose of a Md ever specifically discussed the ns- 
prehminary hearing under Louisiana saMtnatinn of President Kennedy, 
law is to determine whether or not the Many of the details of Rus*A story,
state ha* sufficient evidence to warrant it turned out.
a trial. Although it is not unusual for hypnosis^-a method that Garrison said 
the defense to request a preliminary ‘he used in order to "objectin'* test*-

inony*’Moreover, it wax leagued that 
Russo had been under |*v- 
chiatric treatment (or eight­
een months, ending in late 
I960, and had last consulted 
a psychiatrist just two months 
before he went to sec Gar-

hearing, if only to attempt to wm|xl 
the state to tip its hand and disclose 
vital evidence before the ac- 

' tual trial, such a hearing is 
rarely, if ever, requested by 
the prosecution. Why, then, 
should Garrison, the prose­
cutor, have elected to dis­
close some of his evidence 
before the trial—an appar­
ently gratuitous favor to the 
defense? Garrison has said ■ 
that he did so in order to 
“lean over backward and give the de­
fendant every chance.” A preliminary 
hearing, however, has at least one ex­
tralegal consequence that a political- 
minded prosecutor might find advan­
tageous: it provides the prosecution 
with a dramatic opportunity to reveal 
publicly far in advance of,the trWsome 
of the more sensational aspects of the 
case, thus helping to stimulate public 
interest. Whether or not Garrison’s 
extraordinary move did, as he claimed, 
enhance the defendant’s prospects for 
justice, it unquotioHabJy worked to : 
focus national attention on the case. | recognized from photographs as Lcc[

With a full complement of reporters 1 Harvey Oswald. The other man Bundy

rkon.
The District .Attorney

found his only other witness, 
Vernon B. Bundv, in the 

^ Parish Prison after the hear­
ing had begun. Assistant District At­
torney Charles Ray Ward and other 
members of Garrison’s staff strenuously 
objected to using Bundv as a witness, 
but Garrison put him on the stand any­
way. Bundy, a narcotics addict and 
petty thief, testified that in the summer 
of 1963, while he was preparing to 
inject the contents of two capsules of 
heroin into his arm, he saw two 
men meet on the shore of Lake

• moreover, Russo did not state that 
? he had ever met Shaw, and he him-
• self made no mention whatever of

a Bertrand—either. Chv nr Clem, 
» Assistant District Attorney Sciambra, 

who conducted this first interview and
I wrote up the memorandum, later said 

that Russo did tell him 
of the assassination plot 
hut that he forgot to 
include it in his report.
Yet Sciamhra’s own 
worth in tlx memo­
randum would appear 
to belie this explana­
tion: “The next picture 
that he [Russo] identi­
fied was that of Clay 
Shaw. He said that he 
mw (his man twice. The first time 
was when he pulled into Fcrrie’s serv­
ice station to get hi$ car fixed. Shaw 
was the person sitting in the compact 
car talking with Ferne. He remembers 
seeing him again at the Nashville Street 
Wharf when he went to sec J.F.K. 
speak.” Here Sciambra specifically states 
that Russo said he mw Shaw twice, and 
neither occasion involved a rendezvous 
in Fcrrie’s apartment during which 
Shaw, Ferric, and Oswald planned the

in attendance, the hearing began on 
March Hch, before a panel of three 
judges, with the testimony of Per­
ry Russo. Russ*» stated that he had 
attended a meeting at Fcrrie’s apart-

Pontchartrain, on the outskirts of New j assassination. If Russo went on to de- 
Orlwns. One, whom Bundy described | scribe a third encounter, and that was 
as “a .junkie or beatnik tVpc” with ai the only one relevant b Garrison’s 
light growth of beard, he had Liter} case, it is difficult to understand how

Sciambra could have neglected tn in­
clude it in the memorandum. More­
over, according to Billings, Sciambra 
did not mention the alleged “third en­
counter” in an oral report he made to 
Garrison the day after the interview.

identified as Clay Shaw. Like Russa, 
Bundy had never before told nmone- 
about his encounter with Oswald. I he 
three-judge panel ruled that there was
sufficient evidence h r a trial. The deci- Sciambra rqiortcd that Russo said he

. ment in September, 1963, nt which pion was by no means startling; it mere- had seen Shaw only twice—once at 
the assassination of President Kcn-Jy csuhlislicd that there was evidence Fcrrie’s service station and once nt the
nedy was planned by three men: • 
Ferric, a man he’called “Leon Os­
wald,” and another he called “Clem 
Bertrand.” Russo identified Leon Os­
wald as Lee Harvey Oswald from 
a photograph. Then Garrison asked 
Russo whether he recognized the man ! 
he called Clem Bertram! in the court­
room. Russo pointed out Clay Shaw. ;

ith.it merited judgment. Yet to many 
people the ruling suggested that Gam- 
Son hail won some sort of legal victory.

As it turned out, the evidence u<cd 
at the preliminary hearing wax even less 
sound than it may have appeared at 
the time. About six weeks after the 
hearing, James R. Phelan reported in

He testified that* after the three men • had told two contradictory stories—one

Nashville Street Wharf. In fact, the 
first time Billings heard of the third 
encounter, during which Russo was 
supposed to diave overheard Bertrand, 
Ferric, and Oswald planning the as- • 
sassination in Fcrrie’s apartment, was 
when Sciambra himself tvLl Russo that 
he had mentioned the name Bcr-' 
trand and had described the meeting

had discussed such details as the need 
for “diversionary tactics,” the “trian­
gulation” of crossfire, and the selection 
of an .appropriate “scapegoat,” they 
ended the conversation by bickering 
over various methods of escape.

Under cross-examination the fallow­
ing day, Russo admitted that he had not 
been able to identify Oswald positively 
until after an artist in the District .At­
torney’s office spent six hours drawing 
different beards on photographs of Os­
wald. It was also revealed that, before

in his first interview with Sciambra. the 
other in court, after being questioned 
under hypnosis. Phelan discovered the 
discrepancy when Garrison, with his 
customary' generosity to journalists 
supplied him with a memorandum 
of Russo’s first interview. Nowhere 
in this, document, which ran to thirty- 
five hundred wotds, was the supposed 
meeting among Shaw, Ferric, and 
Oswald mentioned, either directly or 
implicitly. Yet (wo weeks later, in 
court, Russo stated t[><itjt had definite-

Ritw had taken the “truth scrum.” 
And Russo still, at this time, said that 
he could not remember anyone named 
Bertrand.

If a witness tells two contradictory 
stories, external evidence nuy make it 
possible t<» choose between them. In 
Russa’s case, the corroborative evidence 
available cast*, doubt on his second shi­
rr—the one he told in court. He tes­
tified that Oswald was Fcrrie’s room­
mate in early September, .1963, yet 
there is evidence that at that time O>



Wald «.u hv.ng uT> h* «'^ and their 
inhut daughter ea M\:>.' w Sheet in 
New Oilcans. Ru^*» JcstM Oswald 
as having a ho rd in ora* And mid- 
September, set grnenlh rrktMc wit- 
iwss'i rrp'nnl that (\waM was dean* 
shaven at that time. Russ' claimed that 

he mw Oswald in Fcr- 
tie's apartment in the 
Ursi week of (ktoher, 
vet <XwaU was known 
tn have been tn Mexico 
and Pallas doting this 
period. Russo said that 
a friend of his Niles 
Peterson* w.15 at a par­
ty at Feme's apartment 
the night that he saw 
Oswald and Shaw 

there, vet Peterson flatly denies that he 
saw anyone fitting the description of 
either Shaw or Oswald. (Peterson did, 

; however, recall a bearded man who 
’ was sic (oct tall and otherwise fitted 

the description of the nun who was 
known to be Feme's roommate at the 
time—‘•James R. Lewallen.) Rusm 

' claimed, further, that a taxing woman, 
Sandra Moffitt, accompanied him to 
Fcrric’s apartment the night of the 
meeting, vet die denies this, and says 
that she did not meet Fcrrie until 1964. 
In sum, Russo’s court testimony ap­
pears to be at odds with a great many 
of the external points of reference he 
himself provided. .After the preliminary 
hearing, Room began expressingdouhts 
about his identification of Shaw. He 
told James Phelan, who had spent 
more than fortv hours questioning him 
for his Siine^’ar £vrnm; Pv$i article, 
that he wished he could have an “op­
portunity tn talk to Shaw Mr a few 
hours so I can be sure he wx« the right 
man.” He told Richard Townley, a 
reporter for WDSU-TV, in New Or­
leans, that he was unsure of his testi­
mony.

The testimony of Garri^m's other 
witness, Vernon Bundy, also raised a 
number of questions. One of Bundy’s 
fellow-inmates in the Parish Prison, 
Miguel Torres, told an N.B.C. inter­
viewer that Bundv had admitted to 
him that he was testifying for Garrison 
“because it’s the only way that I can 
get cut loose”—indicating that unless 

' he did testify, his probation would be 
revoked and he would have to com­
plete a five-year sentence in prison. 
Bundy was subsequently arrested on a 
charge of robbery. .Another inmate, 
John (the Baptist) Cinder, said in an 
interview that Bundy had mid him 
that his account of the events at Lake 
Puntchartrain was a fabrication. Of 
course, felons are not known for tl tir 
probity, and Garrison dismissed the

Matemenu ot . :v* .md C.«n. kf “m
view of their criminal record'^'* Hu’t if 
n<» credence it to he placed vj the tcMi- 
manyof Bundi's fel<ow-con»\-:*. oh.it 
of the testimonv of Bundi b?m<elf:

Garrison's entire case at the ptlmii- 
nary hearing, then, was Kocd “n the 
allegations of two witnesses who had 
both waited four van before disclos­
ing UHCnrrobotated stories and who 
both subsequently cast considerable 
douht on their ow n testimonv.

A few months after the hearing, 
there was another legal skirmish that 
strengthened the appearance, if not the 
substance, of Garmon's C5<c^.Umr- 
Andtcws the New Orleans lawyer 
who had claimed that shorth alter the 
assassination a shadowv figure named 
Chy Bertrand appealed to him tv go 
to Dallas and defend Oswald, became 
involved in perjury proceedings. An­
drews, after telling a number of stories 
about Bertrand, and at one p^m claim­
ing that Bci trand was a figment of 
his imagination, had nevertheless Mated 
categorically when Garrison questioned 
him in December that Shaw was not 
Bertrand. In late February, after Russo 
had come forward, Garrison ‘again 
met with Andrew's. According to .An­
drews, the District Attorncv ms! he 
had other evidence that Shaw was in- 
Valved, and asked Andrew's not-tn deny 
th.it Shaw and Bertrand were one and 
the same. Andrews agreed—because, he 
has said, he was afraid that “otherwise 
the Jolly Green Giant would pounce 
on me like a thousand-pound canary.”’ 
When called before a grand jury* in 
March and asked if Clay Shaw was 
Clay Bertrand, he replied, under iwth, 
“I can’t say that he is and I can't say 
that he ain't.” Three months later, on 
June 28th, Andrews volunteered to ap­
pear again before the grand jun. This 

'time, he told of a “deal” with Garrison 
and testified that he had never thought 
far a moment that Shaw was Bertrand. 
Bertrand, he admitted, was a fictitious 
name he had used in order to protect. 
a friend of his, a bartender in the 
French Quarter. Andrews acknowl­
edged (hat he had perjured himself 
previously, and said, “It doesn't make 
any difference to me if I'm omvkt- 
cd... . Clay Shaw is not Cur Ber­
trand. Indict me if you want tn.” 

/(ndrews was subsequently ar­
raigned, tried, and convicted for per­
jury. Although the conviction is being 
appealed^ Garrison declared that this 
represented “a major conviction ... in 
connection with this case.” It vx\ if 
anything, a Pyrrhic victory. Asstint 
District Attorney Alcock charged that 
the name Bertrand had been “mesaed 
on the world” by "Andrews, but it

Bertrand was indeed a fiettou. invented 
bv Andrew* after the .UMwmtionJiow 
could Rusxo testify that he had met 
Shaw before the a^M^mation under 
the pseudonym Bertrand? 
According to the Sciambra 
memorandum, Russ* had 
not mentioned the name.
Bertrand in his initial inter­
view. It was only after Sci- 
ambra told Russo that he 
had identified one of the par­
ticipants at the meeting in 
Ferric’* apartment as Ber­
trand while under the Influ- 

. .cnee nf sodium pcntothal—an 
identification which, accord­
ing H> Billings, Russo did not 
recall at the time—and after Russo ’ 
was allowed to ask leading questions 
about the case so that, in his own 
words, he “could figure out ‘what they 
wanted to know,” (hat the name Ber­
trand found its way into his story.

AFTER the preliminary hearing, 
Tk (here was a second notable shift 
in the nature of the investigation. 
Whereas the first phase had concentrat­
ed on the activities of David Ferric, 
and the second was devoted principally 
t<» efforts to substantiate Russa’s al­
legations about Clay Shaw, the third 
phase had no single specific objective. 
It was, in effect, a hunt without a 
quarry, a search for any information 
from any source (hat might relate to 
any aspect of the assassination. For 
this desultory pursuit, Garrison re­
inforced his |»crmancnt staff with 
volunteer recruits from the growing 
corps of critics of the Warren Com­
mission. A number of these people 
who might best he described as |K'ri* 
patetic demtuudogists found in New 
Orleans an unexpected rallying point; 
they were attracted to Garrison like the 
children of Hamdin to the Pied Piper. 
At the head of (he line stood Mark 
Lane, the author of “Rush to Judg­
ment,” who, together with William 
Turner, a staff writer for Ram^artt, 
spent months assiduously combing Gar- . 
rison’s files on the case for new clues 
and devising ingenious schemes to pro­
duce new disclosures. (When one as­
sistant district attorney protested that 
by making Xerox copies of the evi­
dence Lane might he jeopardizing the 
case, Garrison replied that Lane and 
Turner were “writing the official his­
tory of the investigation.”) Reportsan 
developments in Texas came from 
Penn Jones, Jr., the editor nf the Mid­
lothian, Texas, Mirror and the author 
of «i scries of booklets called “Forgive 
My Grief,” the most celebrated feature 
of . which was a death count of indi-



viduah who were even peripheral!* 
connected with the a^visonuion. and 
frvm Allan Chapman, a knight-errant 

in a two-lmndred-vear-old 
crusade against the Illuminati 
(supposedly a worldwide 
conspiracy of intellectuals 
who now control the trie- a fifth ^xit from which he has wd the 
vision networks). IbtuMjjJion were fired. Six months before. 
Weisberg, the author of a (Garrison had theorized that there were
numerically consecutive senes jnnly two assassins—•one in the Texas 
of books called “ White- | School Book Dcp^itt^rv Building and 
wash,” was charged with the tunc on the so-called grassy ImJI, just 
task of going through the • beyond the building and on the same

Warren Commission’s testi- case with Weisberg, who believes that 
mony and evidence for new there was another rifleman in the near- 

leads relevant to Garrison’s investi­
gation. Two specialists in photographic 
interpretation, Raymond Marcus and 
Richard Sprague, scanned films of 
the assassination to detect previous-

by IhbTcx Building, Garrison accom­
modatingly added a third rideman 
there, and also exonerated {Oswald 
from having fired any of the shots.
Then Marcus came along with a blow- 

If neglected pieces that might fit: up of some trees and shadows on (he

twenty-six volumes of the j side of the street. After dtseusung the object partly concealed lx the heavily 
tv.rr^t, C<>mmKwwi,< t«kT>» biv« with lV«,i<}v,r<» wk, tvl^t^ tl»o matted grass, and he scutes that (his

into what Garrison calls his “jigsaw grassy knoll, claiming that this revealed 
puzzle.” Three trouhlc-shootcrs-at- four gunmen in cowboy hats and Gar- 
large also assisted—Jones Harris, with risun added four more assassins tv the

• band. (Two <»f them, he has suggested, 
were there to pick up stray cartridge 
cases.) Next, Jones Harris showed 
Garrison a blowup of a truck parked 
behind a picket fence, and the “Cum- • 
mando team” grew by two. By mid- ( 
June, Garrison was saying that thei 
assassination was performed bv a four- ’ 
teen-man tram of Cuban pier nib 
fighters. Finally, after discussing the 
matter at some length with Professor 
Popkin, Garrison posited a “second 
Oswald,” who was'sent tn impersonate 
the first Oswald at the scene. (This un^ 
dcrsundahly disconcerted some mem­
bers of his staff, since the presence of 
a second Oswald would tend to vitiate 
the legal case against Clay Shaw: Did 
Shaw conspire with Oswald, as be is 
accused of doing, or with an imper­
sonator? ) The assassins were suppli­
ed. according tn Garrison, by Jack 
Ruby and some members of the Dallas 
Police Department.

Although the exact number of as- 
sassins changed from one public state­
ment to the next, the “forces behmd 
the conspiracy” grew steadily. In the

whom I had gone through the evi­
dence when I first arrived in New 
Orleans; Richard H. Popkin, a profes­
sor of philosophy at the University of 
California at San Diego and the author 
of “The Second Oswald,” a conject­
ural essay originally published in the 
New York Review of tlooki which 
suggests that the assassination was per-
formed not by 
Doppelganger i 

. comedian Mort
amateur sleuths,

Oswald hut hy his 
and the night-club 
Sahl. Although these 
who sometimes refer

to themselves as the DeaJcy Plaza Ir­
regulars, have provided Garrison .with 
the bulk of the new “evidence” that 
he has cited in numerous public ap­
pearances—he appeared on numerous 
radio and television shows in the course 
of a const-to-coast tour arranged in 
connection with the Playboy inter­
view—-they have occasionally proved 

,a source of friction for the professional 
< I investigators on Garrison’s staff.

1 A member of Garrison's staff who 
has worked on the investigation since 
its inception has described the contribu­
tion of the amateurs this way: “The 
trouble with these third-rate students 
is that the only way they can make a 
strong impression on Garrison is by 
coming up with flamboyant nonsense, 
thus hoping to be hired as someone 
with original ideas. They therefore 
represent a serious threat tn the sanity

$.»n told-Senator Russell Long that oak 
a few insignificant men were invoked. 
Then, after FcrrieT death, Garrison 
began to sjiecify the guilty panics, 
denriring them as a Ivnd of perverts 
and anti-Castro Cubans. With the ar- ‘
rival »«( the dcmonologists however,;of the investigation. One of them has i

a bad habit of steering Garrison into the conspiracy was rapidly escalated to
crackpot directions, such as the ‘Storm include Minutemen, C.I.A. agents oil
Drain Theory,* to which Garrison 
tends to be susceptible.” When Allan 

: Chapman, the Illuminati specialist, 
lent his support to the theory that a 
shot had been fired from a storm drain

millionaires, Dallas .policemen, muni­
tions exporters, “the Dallas establish­
ment.” reactionaries. White Russians, 
and certain elements of “the in visible» 
Nan substructure.” -

tinsio D^Vy PI.WA that dn iTl>xiU< 
G.orivin Mated on television that the 
bullet that killed President Kennedy 
wnt “fired by 4 man Mand ng in a 
sewer manhole.” Thus, Garren add­
ed a sixteenth man to the team tlut he 
claim* carried out the assassination and

fAlManlHun consfurici predicated* 
Gatrp«*n*« method of e\<>c*ng the last 
member of the team */kthaps indica­
tive. The figure of whr? mar he reck­
oned a* the sixteenth astron was ex- 
(rapobted from two f*»h.'C^rapln taken 
about ten minutes after the assassina­
tion. Tic fiist shows a can in a dark 
suit apparently examining a curb near 
the. spot Where Preside?.: Kennedy Wal 
shot, with two puliccmca shown look­
ing on. Garrison clangs that he can 
detect in this photograph a pcbhlclike

nbjrct is a .4 5-Calibre bullet “which 
killed J<4hi Kennedy, »-kb has mark­
ings on it that would shew [tluit] the 
automatic gun frnm *wh it came 
(was a] handgun.” The bullet is not 
readily visible to the nak^i etc; in fact, 
according to one mem Ser et Garrison’* 
Staff, the photograph s *^ £fuiny th^C it 
is difficult even to disnrg<;&.S the curb

taken seconds later, shews the man in 
the dark suit walking away with liiy 
hands closed. Flashing this photograph 
in front of television camccxs in Dallas, 
Garrison declared that the man (from 
his appearance Garrison j^ somehow 
surmised him to be a “fc^fi! agent”) 
had “got (he bullet cle^d in his 
hand, the bullet that kuW J hn Ken­
nedy.” Garrison has never explained 
how he could determine &vca .a photo­
graph that a bullet was bS*£ held in a 
man’s closed fist—and cua decern its 
calibre. However, this *m the “evi­
dence” that Garrison cites ia support 
of the thcorv that an wwsa was in a
sewer, and of his own 
vision that “the bulk;

vn tele-

John Kennedy, which fcK » the grass 
with pieces of the Presents head, 
was in the hands of the fczkrxl govern­
ment ten minutes after the President 
was dcad.””And Garrison went even 
further. “This means that the federal * 
government knowingtv pa^epated in 
framing Lee Oswald,” he sid. “Lyn­
don Johnson had to know w.k*

/Mthmigh most of the evdssas were
identified onlv as projccbis of con­
nected dots in enlargements of photri­
graphs of trees and shrubbery the man
whom Garrison identified a Playboy 
as the seventh member of rhe assassina­
tion team turned out, much J.'the Dis­
trict Attorney’s embarrassm^x:. to be 
a real person. Garrison alleged that this 
seventh man “created a <ivct>ionary 
action in order to distract xvci?$ at­
tention from the snipers," chaining, 
“This individual screamed, 
fell to the ground, and simu­
lated an epileptic fit, draw- 
wg people away from the v>-

-9-
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emit* of the knoll jim before 
the President** motorcade 
reached the ambush point.** 
Garrison further described 
this man, presumably one of A 
number of anti-Castro Cu­
ban paramilitarists, a* being 
clad tn green combat fa* 
tigtics. As it happened, how­
ever, the person Garrison 
was talking about was Jerry 
Boyd Belknap, an employee 
of the Dallas Morning 
Nettf* who had fainted in 
Dealcy Phra about twenty minutes be­
fore the motorcade arrived. Belknap 
explained to the F.B.I. that he had had 
frequent fainting spells since he suf­
fered a serious head injur)* in an auto­
mobile accident in I960, and that he 
had been receiving daily medication to 
prevent these spells. When Garrison 
learned that the man who fainted was 
not the paramilitarist he had presumed 
him to be, he told his staff to forget 
about the matter. Yet in his public 
statements he continued to say that hr 
had located this seventh member of the 
commando team,

A prosecutor who wants to insure 
that the story of his investigation re­
mains newsworthy must produce nTW 
evidence constantly. Garrison’s corps of 
Irregulars proved helpful not simply 
in digging out new evidence but, on 
occasion, in finding opportunities for 
Garrison tn present it. When Mort 
Sahl appeared on the Johnny Carson 
television show last January and com­
plained about the coverage that the 
various media had given the District 
Attorney and his case, Carson agreed 
to have Garrison on his program, 
provided that he would not mcrelv 
reiterate old charges but would present 
new evidence. Garrison telegraphed 
Carson accepting the impromptu offer. 
And on the evening of last January 
31st Carson devoted most of his show 
to an interview with Garrison. lYhen 
Carson asked Garrison to reveal the 
new evidence (hat he claimed he haJ, 
Garrison reached into a Mack leather 
portfolio he held in his lap and pulled 
out some photographs, which, he sank 
showed suspects being arrested im­
mediate!) after the assassination. “Here 
are the picture* of five of them being 
arrested,** he said, “and they’ve never 
been shown before.** He went on to 
say, “Several of these men arrested 
have been connected by our office with 
the Central Intelligence Agency.” The 

new evidence Garrison pre­
sented that night had been 
found by Allan Chapman 
some weeks before, in the 
photographic department of |

(he Ihll.u 1 imri llmtiji 
Robert HMhngvworlh, man* 
•V'”g editor of the Ti~.'i 
HeraU^ !u.< (oh! me th.it he 
personally inspected with a 
magnifying glass the photo­
graphs given to Chapman, 
and that they showed noth­
ing more than some bystand­
ers, two of whom were em­
ployed in the budding tn 
which Oswald worked, bcu»g 
routinely questioned by po­

licemen. Carson, who was, of course, 
seeing the pictures fur the first rime, 
had no way of knowing who the 

; individuals in the pictures were or 
; whether they were in fact ‘’being ar­

rested,” and he had no way of chal- 
; kngwg Gannon’s claim that the* 

were connected with the C.I.A. What 
’ Garrison presented to the public that 
j night, then, was not actually new 
i evidence—witnesses pictured in ht> 
■ photographs had testified before the 
Warren Commission—but a new and I 
totally unsubstantiated interpretation ofj 
old evidence. |

Any sensational murder ease attracts; 
its share of crank letters, publicity seek- ! 
ers, and bogus tips, and, whereas most 
district attorneys regard such offers of, 
help as a nuisance, Garrison found 
them a rich source of new witnesses,* 
ready to provide allegations and dis­
closures of the sort required to keep his 
story current in the press. Although it 
is extremely doubtful whether anv of 
these volunteer witnesses will ever 
testify in court, the case of a man 
named Donald Philetus Norton illus­
trates the use to which the testimony of 
such “secret witnesses” can be put in 
rhe open arena of public opinion. Nor­
ton, a thirty-four-year-o’d night-club ( 

ientertainer, got in touch with Gar-' 
I rison in June, 1^67, claiming that he I 

had been a C.I.A. courier, and that he' 
had delivered fifty thousand dollars ml 
a man who was “a dead ringer for! 
Oswald” in Mexico in 1962 and had 
received a htmdred-and-fifty-thousand- 
dollar “pickup” from David Ferric in 
1958. He Mid, further, that he would 
like to work as an investigator for 
Garrison. Norton was immediately 
brought to New Orleans from Van­
couver, where he was living at the 
time, and was interrogated hv Garri- 
son’s pseudonymous intelligence expert 
Bill Boxley. Though Norton was more 
than willing to identify Oswald, Ferrie, 
and even Shaw as C.I.A. agents, his I 
story contained so many contradictions I 
and implausibilities that Boxley and | 
other staff members concluded that he j 
would be totally ineffective as.a wit-; 
new. (It was later revealed that he

| wj* a convicted tank embezzler with a 
. tl«n^<n record.) But even though Nor- 

. t<»n wjv turned down in July as a pos­
sible court witness, Garrison referred 
t«» him a* a “secret witness” in the* 
interview that appeared in (he October 
wuc <>( Playboy, “We have evidence 
that Oswald maintained his C.I.A.

. contacts .. . and that Ferric was also 
employed by the C.I.A.,” he an­
nounced. “In this regard, we will pre­
sent in court a witness—formerly a 
C.I.A. courier—who met both Ferrie 
and Oswald officially in; their C.I.A. 
connection.” This “courier” was sub* 
srqucntly identified by “a member of 
Garrmn’s staff as Norton.

Another witness who was found in 
the mail—this one with Professor Pop­
kin’s assistance—was Richard Case 
Nagcll, an inmate of a federal institu­
tion for the criminally insane in Spring- 
field, Missouri. Nagcll had been arrest-, 
cd while he was attempting to rob a 
bank in El Paso in September, 1963, 
and had been sent to prison. r\fter the 
assassination, he claimed that he had 
purposely got himself arrested in order 
to provide himself with an alibi for his 
involvement in the assassination con­
spiracy, his part in it, he said, had been 
to kill Oswald, who was the “patsy.” 
Although the court records indicated 
’^t Nagcll had suffered brain damage 
in an airplane crash in 1957, Garrison 
thought his story worth pursuing, and 
sent a former assistant district attorney, 
William R. Martin, to Missouri to 
question him. Nagcll insisted that he 
had proof of the conspiracy in the form 
of t.i|K recordings stashed away in a 
strainer trunk in California. When no 
recordings could be found, however, 
Nagcll told Martin, “They’ve stolen 
the tapes,” and refused to discuss the 
matter any further^ 'Chough Nagell, 
like Norton, was rejected as a court 
witne;$. Garrison continued to use Na- 
gelPs story l«> holster his case in public. 
Explaining Oswald’s role as a patsy in 
the conspiracy, Garrison stated in his 
Playboy interview, “We have evidence 
that the plan was to have him (Os-, 
wald] shot as a cop killer in the Texas 
Theatre ‘while resisting arrest.*” Gar­
rison said he was unable to divulge the 
evidence at the lime, but the whole* 
thing was one of Nagell’s (ales. j

Another confidential witness with 
whom Garrison has spent a good deal 
of tune is a Dallas ex-convict who was 
recently under suspicion in Texas for at­
tempted murder. According to Thomas 
Bethell, this witness “drops into the 
office at fairly frequent intervals and 
readily identifies almost anyone you 
show him a photograph of.” He has 
proved more cooperative than accu-



rate. Of thirteen new witnew* found wd the unuibM.inli.itc4 ti'Mi- 
moov of unstable witnesses

all have turned out to have criminal 
records or to have been under psychi­
atric care.

The “mailbag,” as all of the unso­
licited tips and offers to testify are called 
around the District Attorney’s office, 
has led to one arrest. William Turner, 
the Ramparts staff writer (and a for­
mer employee of the F.B.L), ran across 
an anonymous letter alleging that a 
Californian named Eugene Bradley had 
once made inflammatory comments on 
President Kennedy. Checking through 
a file he keeps on right-wing extremists, 
Turner found an Edgar Eugene Brad­
ley, who raised funds fur a radio pro­
gram called **2Oth Century Hefurma*

ineffective in cheeking Gar­
rison? In his study of the 
hie Senator Joseph R. Mc­
Carthy, Richard H. Roverc 
demonstrates how a certain 
kind of demagogue, when he 
is assailed by the press, can turn the
hostile criticism to his own advantage. 
Such a demagogue builds his political 
base on the systematic exploitation of 
inchoate fears, and sets about organiz­
ing a popular Right from reality. To 
him, even the most vocal censure, how­
ever adverse its ostensible effect, repre­
sents useful publicity, for the more rig­
orously he is assaultcdby the press, the 
more prominently he figures in the

lion Hour/’ and who happened to have popular imagination. A false charge has
been in Texas on the day of the assas­
sination—though in El Paso, not in 
Dallas. On the basis of this informa­
tion, Garrison, who at the time was 
in Los Angeles raising funds himself, 
telephoned his office in New Orleans 
and ordered Assistant District Attor­
ney Alcock to issue a warrant for: 

, Bradley’s arrest, charging him with: 
[ conspiracy to kill President Kennedy.! 
। Bethel!, reported concern apxmg the 
staff members; there was nothing in 
the files on Bradley except the anony*

to be repeated if it is to be refuted, and 
if the charge happens to be mote a]»- 
pealing (han the truth it ts entirely 
possible, that it, rather than its refuta­
tion, will win general credence. This 
is rsfMTully likely to occur if the dem- 
agogue’s charge offers a more or less 
plausible explanation of disturbing 
events and if its refutation depends on 
the word of government officials, since 
the people most apt to accept conspira­
torial.interpretations of history arc those 
who arc most suspicious pif both com-.

Kennedv has been by talk­
ing about a second conspiracy 
that Frcw m^ of the ^ 
one—a conspiracy of secre­
cy dedicated tn concealing 

the truth about the assassination. As 
in a ipjcch lie gave last December 
in New Mexico jocuhriv entitled 

| “The Rise of the Fourth Reich, or 
Huw «• Conceal the Truth Abmit an 
Assassination Without Really Trying,” 
Garrison often seems inert deeply prn- 
occupied with exposing an insidious 
misprision on the part of federal au­
thorities than with establishing the facts 
of the assassination itself. Tsi be sure, 
such an oliscxsional cimccrn with gov­
ernmental suppression is not a new 

| phenomenon, nor is it hm..cd to the 
; assassination issue. 'P.c pnlitical-suciolo- 
. gist Edward Sink has pointed to a high- 
11" suggestive link between the gencral- 
i ized fear of secrecy and the Populist 
tradition in .America. In his book “The..

♦ Torment of Secrecy,” he argues that 
a repugnance toward secrccv is so deep­
ly ingrained in American political life 

.'that even in matters involving national 
| security secrecy is tolerated only as a 
j necessary evil. To exploit this fear of 
: secrecy, a truly Machiavellian politician 

J could be expected to portray himself asmow letter, and no one in the office plexity and authority. A* Roverc points , .
had even heard of Bradley as a suspect. : out with regard to McCarthy, the dem- | engaged in a life-and-death struggle to
The warrant was issued anyway, and
Bradley was arrested tn Los Angeles 
and then released in his own recogni­
zance. When Garrison returned to 
New Orleans, he remarked that be 
saw little prospect of Bradley's ever 
being extradited by Governor Reagan. 
After leaving Garrison’s staff, William

agoguc soon learns that “the penalties
for a really audacious mendacity arc not 
as severe as the average politician fears 
them to be, that, in fact, there may be 
no penalties at all, hut only profit.”

In a sense, the man who exploits 
popular fears builds his reputation on

wrest secrets from some powerful elite

the prestige of his adversaries. The
jGurvich said, “Jim has a phtlw»phy . more impressive the list of detractors he 
•about national headlines. He believes can cite, the more important his charges
that everyone reads the headlines con- appear to he. “Why are they trying to
cerning arrests and charges hut few 
people read denials or correcting statc-

’ ments.”

THE principal consideration oper­
ating to restrain a duly elected 
district attorney from making indis­

criminate arrests and charge—aside, 
from normal ethical considerations—is ; 
fear of exposure hy the preM if sup­
porting proof should not be .forthcom­
ing. Yet, despite cogent evidence of 
malfeasance on Garrison’s part report­
ed by a number of journalists, public- 
opinion polls indicate that there has ac­
tually been a substantial increase in the 
number of people, nut only in Louisi­
ana but throughout (he country, who 
share Garrison’s belief in a conspiracy. 
If in fact his case is based on : 
little more than wild rumors'

destroy me?” the demagogue asks. But 
the surest benefit he derives from being 
publicly criticized is the “right to re- 
ply”-r-a right that is greatly enhanced 
by the demands of day-to-day report­
ing, which cause the press to focus more 
directly bn the individual under attack 
than on the general issue at stake. If 
the demagogue is challenged on radio 
or television, lie can demand “equal 
time” to respond.. And, <»f course, his 
reply need not restrict itself to a defense 
of his original position. Indeed, to ob­
fuscate the issue further and mitigate 
the attack on him, the demagogue may 
strike out in an altogether different di­
rection. Fur he is, typically, concerned

that controls the government and the 
news media, and to interpret all criti­
cism levelled against him as part of a 
plot to conceal the dark truth from the 
populace.

The first full-scale criticism of Gar* 
rison came in the last week of April, 
1967, in the Saturday Evr*htg Post* 
when, in an article entitled “A Plot to 
Kill Kennedy? Rush to Judgment in 
New Orleans”Jamcs Phelan revealed 
that the crucial part of Russo’s testi­
mony—the section incriminating Clay 
Shaw—was contradicted by a state­
ment Russo had made earlier to Assist­
ant District .Attorney Scumbra. The 
day Phelan’s story appeared, a bold 
headline in the New Orleans States*

not with substantive issues but with 
ways of manipulating the 
emotions of the electorate.

One way Garrison has re-

Item announced, “MOIXTSXG EVI­
DENCE LINKS CIA TO ‘PLOT* PROBE.” 
The article under this head, which im­
plied that the C.LA. was attempting hi 
block Garrison’s efforts because for­
mer agents were involved in the con­
spiracy, had been prepared by several 
States-ltem reporters, including Hoke 
May and Ross Yockey, who at the 
time were working closely with Gar-—, 
risen on the invcsrigatk*a. Whether 
by design or hy accident, the charges 
against the C.LA. effectively over­
shadowed the Phelan stvrv, at lease in



reported that a friend of David Ferrie’s 
had been offered a threc-thousand-dol- 
br bribe tn implicate Clay Shaw in 
the conspiracy. The offer had been 
secretly tape-recorded by the witness’s 
lawyer. Although the tape left it un­
clear whether the money was to be in 
payment for true information or falser 
it was damaging under any circum­
stances. (Al-one point, Garrison's rep­
resentative said, “We can change 
the story around/’) When Garrison 
learned of the impending Newtweck 
dtsclowrc, he prepared a memorandum 
on C.I.A. participation in the assassins-
tion; this document promptly found its 
way into the hands of jockey and 
May, who wrote it up in an exclusive that Ferrie’s bearded roommate, who
story in the Stata-hrm. Upon being 
asked about the Nrwiwrrk charges, 
Garrison answered by confirming the 
Stitfei-ltrm rqwrt on the C.I.A. “The 
federal agents who concealed vital 
knowledge regarding President Ken­
nedy’s assassination, and their superiors 
who arc now engaged in a dedicated 
effort to discredit and obstruct the 
gathering of evidence, arc guilty of 
being accessories after the fact tn one 

. of the crudest murders in our history/’ 
he declared, and he went on to warn 
that “the arrogant totalitarian efforts 
of these federal agencies to obstruct the 
discovery of truth is a matter which I 
intend t<» bring to light.” An article in 
the New York Timet the following 
day attested to Garrison’s success in 
blurring issues; although the Timet 
article focussed on the Nrwtwek re- 
port, the headline read, “GARRISON 
CHARGES C.I.A. AND F.B.I. CONCEAL 
EVIDENCE ON OSWALD.”

Garrison continued his offensive by 
issuing a stibptcna for Richard Helms, 
the director of the Central Intelligence 
Agency, demanding that Helms pro­
duce a ^holograph showing Oswald in 
the company of a C.I.A. agent in 
Mexico. Subsequently, it was made 
plain (hat Garrison had no reason to 
believe that a photograph showing 
Oswald with a C.I.A. agent had 
ever existed, hut Garrison’s subpoena 
drew national coverage and tended to 
dilute further the effect of the Nrwf

■ revel story. It is worth noting that 
; before Garrison subpoenaed the direc- 1

tor of the Central Intelligence Agen­
cy he had considered another move— 
arresting Regis Kennedy, an F.B.I. 
agent in New Orleans who had taken 
part in the government’* investigation 
of the assassination. Garrison explained

; Russo claimed was Oswald, had been 
, identified by other people at the par- 
! ty as James Lewallen. The program 
; then concentrated on Garrison's inv.es- 
I tigative meth<*ds, and a parade of wit- 
■ nesscs was presented to allege that 
t Garrison representatives had attempted 

to bribe or intimidate them. In ad­
dition, N.B.C. revealed that both of 
Garrison's key witnesses, Russo and 
Bundy, had failed lie-detector tests be- 
f<»rc UHihing at the preliminary hear­
ing. Frank McGee, the N.B.C. anchor 
man, concluded, ‘The case he has built 
against Clay Shaw is based on testi­
mony that did not pass a lie-detector 
test Garrison ordered—and Garrison 
knew it.” The lie-detector evidence 
that N.B.C. used to cap its case against 
Garrison was almost certainly the 
weakest part of that ease. The lie-de­
tector test carries a certain authority in 
the popular imagination, because it ap­
pears to give an unambiguous answer— 
the man is either lying or telling the 
truth—and Xewiwrfk, the Chicago 
Tribune, anti the Hearst Headline 
Service also used Jie detectors to dem­
onstrate that Garrison's case was bawd 
on untruths. But the lie detector is in 
fact merely a device for measuring the 
emotional stress that a witness is under­
going while he is being questioned. Such 
stress may indicate nervousness over de­
ception or it may indicate anv of a 
number of other emotional responses. 
J. Edgar Hoover had informed the 
Warren Commission in a memoran­
dum that lie-detector tests were un- 
rdublc and of dubious value.
N.B.C.- had assembled a 
good deal of cogent, if Com-
plex, evidence to show that 
Russo’s allegation was un­
true. But for it to resort 

.finally to a simple indictmentto Gurvich that although the agent
would deny the charge, the denial »based nn evidence drawn

would Anly add to the effect of crim­
inally charging an F.B.l. agent. But 
Garrison had second thoughts about 
attacking the EB.I. and, according t<* 
Gurvich, chose the C.I.A. because, as 
Garrison himself put it, “(hey can't

t.«f lest* h H the pro.

not bother with
did

afford tn answer.1 (Criticism of the program’s
19th, l<4,ntent; instead, he launched his coun-On the evening <»f June 

N.B.C. devoted an hour to a critical
examination of Garrison's investigation, 
entitled “The J.I.K. Conspiracy:The 
Case of Jim Garrison.” The first part 
of the program dealt with Russo’s 
allegation that he had seen Oswald, 
Shaw, and Ferric plotting the assassina­
tion at a party in Ferrie’s apartment in 
September of |96J. The N.B.C. rc-

|party to an “EthhWiincin” conqHracy 
jtu destrov him. “All of the screaming • 
and hollering now being heard is evi­
dence that we have caught a very large 
fish/' he proclaimed the morning after 
the N.B.C. show, “h is obvhm> (hat

porters demonstrated that at least one ‘ 
other person present at the party nau 
not seen Shaw or Oswald there and

there are elements in Washington, 
D.C., which are desiccate Kvauw we 
are in the process ot uncovering their
hoax.” To account for N.B.C/s inter­
est in his investigation, be told an in­
terviewer that the network "is owned 
by Radio Corjmration of America, one 
of the top ten defense’ contractors in 
the country/' (It is .ictuallv twenty- 
seventh, according to the Department 
of Defense. > Garrison added, “All of 
these Lillies of the evening are very 
much alike—the preferred customer w 
the one with the big bankroll and any 
pisiiion lie suggests is eagerly as­
sumed.” Moreover, Garrison implied 
that the program had been secretly 
financed by the C.I.A.

Garrison demanded equal time, and 
N.B.C. granted him a half hour of 
prime evening time on July *15, 1967, 
to reply to the charges. Once on the 
air, however, he said, “I am not even 
going to bother to dignify the foolish­
ness which Nrwtwrrk and N.B.C. ami

tried to make you believe about my 
office,” and went on to denounce the 
media for manipulating tjie news. After 
giving five specific examples of “sup-
pressed new*,1 nted his fa-
iniliar argument that the attacks on his 
Case attested (n its validity: “. . . if our 
investigation was ns bavwirc as they 
would, like to have you think, then you

r.igc coining from the news o 
the East.” An»l he concluded,

stop me from seeing that Von obtain 
the full .truth, and nothing levs than the 
full truth, and no fairy talcs.” Gar- , 
rison had an audience of some twenty 
million, and for that, he said in his

P/ayb^y interview, he was 
“singularly grateful to Walter 
Sheridan,” one of those who

tique of his case.
Garrison’s gratitude was 

Jess than total. Not long 
after the N.B.C. program, 
he issued warrants for the

w



After it bad become quite clear’that 
vihmmu of Garrison's caw o’^M be 
uwd to generate a spectre of con­
spiracy, Garrison b*>k the logical next 
step and started creating pseudo-attacks 
on himwlf. When remitters >n Tokyo 
asked Chief Justice Earl Warren his 
opinion of the Garrison investigation, 
he replied, “I want to skirt th* ven 
carefully, because the ease could some­
day come before (he Supreme Court.” 
Pressed as to whether G.irnsxi px- 
xxvd any evidence that might contra­
dict the findings of the Commission he 
had headed, the Chief Justice an­
swered, “I’ve heard that he claims to 
have such information, but I haven’t 
seen any.” Garrison immediately char­
acterized this “new counterattack” xs 
“heavy artillery whistling in from 
Tokyo,” and said in a press release, “It 
is a little disconcerting to find the Chief 
Justice of the United States on his 
bands and knees trying to tie some 
sticks of dynamite to the ease. How­
ever, the Chief Justice is a practical 
man and I expect he knows what he is 
doing.... The.’law time he was called 
into action to perform a service was 
when the President of the United 
States was assassinated by men who had 
been connected with the Central In­
telligence Agency.”’Garrison predicted 
a new broadside from-the federal au­
thorities: “Judging from the careful 
coordination which the Establishment 
showed in its last offensive against the 
case, it is safe tn expect that other ele­
ments of the federal government and 
national press will now follow up with; 
a new effort to discredit the case and 
(he prosecution.”

Another example of Garrison’s tech­
nique involved Gordon Novel, the 
electronics expert, who had told him 
about Frrrie’s participation in a “pick­
up” of munitions from the Schlum­
berger Well company, in Houma, Lou-- 
ishna. Nqvd rapidly advanced from 
advising Garrison on anti-eavesdrop- 
ping techniques, the business that had 
first brought him to Garri­
son's attention, to become a 
witness against Ferric and, at 
least in Garrison’s mind, an 
“investigator.” 'Then, ac­
cording to one account, Gar- . 
rison was told that his inves­
tigator had been furnishing 
information to N.B.C. re­
porters, and Novel was sub­
poenaed to appear before a 
grand jury. Instead of ap­
pearing, Novel left the state 
and went to Ohio. Garrison filed bur­
glary charges against Novel, alleging 
that he had participated ih the conspir­
acy to steal arms from the Schlumber­
ger Well company in Houma, and he

arrest <»( Sheridan .>nd ;iU» 
XkImkI Tounh i. wn<i knl 
a\M*tcd in the preparation of 
the show. charging them 
with attempted bribery. Spe-

• eifially, Garrison alleged 
that they had offered Perry Rmw» 
a tree (rip to California, Hilt if this 
offer trelmiallv constituted an act of 
bribery. Garrison himself had taken 
Considerable pains to bait the trap. He 
told me himself that he had directed 
Ru^i to speak to the rcp>rtcrs over 

, a monitored phone and inquire 
what protection they could offer 
him if he were to chance his testi­
mony. The purpose was, as he put it, 
“to give N.B.U. enough rope to hang 
itself.** In his public statement on (he 
matter. Garrison charged that the 
N.B.C. program “will probably stand 
for many years to come as a symbol of 
the length to which some powerful mit- 
sMe interests are willing to go in order 
to interfere with stale government.” 
TIk cases‘are still pending.

Shortly after Garrison’s skirmish 
with N.B.C., William Gurvich re­
signed as one of his investigators, 
after telling Senator Robert F. Ken­
nedy that there was no basis in fact 
and no material evidence in Garri­
son’s case.. Gurvich’s private-detective 
agency had conducted most of (he lie- 
detector tests that Garrison had or­
dered, and at the time of his resignation 
Gurvich bad in his possession a master 

.file of the principal evidence in the case. 
This defection not only made for em­
barrassing headlines but opened up the 
possibility that Garrison’s fund of epn- 
fidrntial information—or his lack of 
such a fund—would be made public. 
In a statement to the press, Garrison 
described Gurvich’s resignation as “the 
latest imwc from the Eastern head­
quarters of the Establishment to at­
tempt to discredit our investigation.” It 
was all part of a coordinated plot 
against him. In another press release, 
he said, “All they are doing is proving 
two things: first, that we were correct 
when we uncovered the involvement 
• •f the Central Intelligence Agency in 
the assassination;-second, that there is 
Something very wrong today with our 
government in Washington, D.C., in­
asmuch as it is willing to use massive 
economic power to conceal the truth 
from the people.” Later, in his Playboy 
interview, Garrison implied that Gur­
vich had been a C.LA. infiltrator from 
the start. He also charged. Gurvich 
with,petty larceny, claiming the file 
that he had was worth nineteen dollars. 
And, for good measure, he charged on 
the A.B.C. “Page One” television 
show that Senator Robert Kennedy 
“has made a real effort to stop the in­
vestigation.”

w'a< arreted in Ohio. After *-»nw -n*- 
htl reluctance, G“icin.'r Jame* 
Rihdes of Ohs\ finally agreed to ex­
tradite Novel to Lmwana if Garren 
would complete the papers within rixtv 
dais, Garn^m, however, dd n«H take 

’the steps that were necessary. As the 
I deadline approached. Assistant District 
Attorney Alcivk asked if he should re­
turn the papers to Ohio, and Garrison 
told him not to bother. .And vet in the 
Potboy interview Garrison insisted, 
“ The reason we were unable to obtain 
Novel’s extradition from Ohio... is 
that there arc powerful b recs in 
Washington who find it imperative tn 
conceal from the American public the 
truth about the assassination.” He went 

: on to indicate that Novel was now a 
material witness in his case and, ac- 
cofding to attorneys for Novel, implied 
(hat his former “investigator” was 
somehow connected with the con­
spiracy. (Novel is suing Garrison and 
Aar^er for ten million dollars in 
punitive and compensatory damages.) 
.And in a speech to the Radio and 
Television News Association of 
Southern California, in Lc*s Angeles 
Garrison cited his failure to obtain 
Novel’s extradition as evidence that 
President Johnson was putting pres­
sure on local officials to secrete wit­
nesses from him. He went on to ac­
cuse President Johnson of preventing 
“the people in this country (mm seeing 
the evidence,” and asserted, with the 
logic of cut bofto^ “... the fact that he 
has profited from the assassinating 
most, more than any other man. makes 
k imperative that he see that the evi­
dence is released, so that we can know 
that he is not involved ...”

Garrison’s technique in expounding 
the so-called second conspiracy is 

typical of what Richard Hofstadter has 
classified as “(he paranoid style in 
American poRtics” to which “the feel­

ing of persecution is central.” 
and which is “systematized in 
grandnise theories of conspir­
acy.” Still, the fact that Gar- 
ris»m expresses his ideas in a 
paranoid stvle does not of it­
self rule ou: the possibility 
that there is substance to his 
claims. Is the C.I.A., for ex­
ample, really concealing sosne 
involvement of its agents in 
the assassination, as Garren 
has claimed? In Mai, 1^7, .

Garrison declared on the .A.B.C. “Is­
sues and Answers” television program, 
“Of course the Central Intelligence 
Agency had no role in the planning or 
intending the assassmition, of President 
Kennedy. I think that would be a 
ridiculous position for anyone tn take.”
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that reveal, it is implied, that Oswald 
was involved in the C.LA.’s U-2 
project, (5) the fact that* the C.I.A. 

. destroyed a docuntent that the War­
ren Commission had requested, (6) 
the identification of Oswald's C.I.A. 
“bahtsitter,” (7} the identification of 
a C.I.A. “courier,” and (8) “the con­
sistent refusal of the federal govern­
ment” to provide Garrison with “any 
information” about the role of the 
C.I.A. in the assassination. This last 
piece <»f “evidence” Garrison calls “the 
clincher,”

At least half of the “evidence” on 
which Garrison’s repertory of charges 
against the C.I.A. is based is itself de­
duced from evidence that Garrison has 
never seen. He has accomplished (his 
trick by simply sketching in on the 
tnbula rasa of missing (or nonexistent) 
evidence facts that appear to incrimi­
nate the C.I.A. If the evidence is 
missing, a revelation of its contents is 
not, of course, easily refuted. .And the 
old suspicion <4 secrecy qua secrecy also 
plays a part. “If there’s nothing to 
hide,” people wonder, “why is the 
thing missing in the first place?” Con­
sider Item N<*. 1, the missing C.I.A. I 
photograph, on which Garrison based 
his original charge chat the C.1A. 
was concealing vital evidence. When 
Garrison subpoenaed Richard Helms, 
the director of the C.I.A., he in­
structed him to produce a photograph ■ 
that C.I.A. agents had taken in Mexico 
City about seven weeks before the as­
sassination and that, Garrison claimed, ’ 
showed Oswald in front of the Cuban ' 
Embassy in the company of a C.I.A. 
agent. The supposed facts conveyed 
hy this missing snapshot were what kd 
Garrison to assert that the C.I.A.*. 
knew the identity of Kennedy’s as­
sassins and was concealing the truth. 
But how had this information been de­
duced from a missing ,
photograph, winch Gar­
rison admits that he has 
never seen?
" Actually, the story ' 
of the C.I.A. photo­
graph had its origin in 
an incident I myself 
first reported, in my 
book “Inquest,” as a 
means of illustrating 
the problems that the 
Warren Commission . 
lawyers faced tn communicating with 
the C.I.A. /According to my account, 
a man in front of the Cuban Embassy 
in Mexico City before the assassination 
had been routinely photographed by a 
hidden C.I.A. camera and identified as 
Lee Harvey Oswald; the information 
had subsequently been forwarded to the

He Itis, however, taken prcciwh th.K 
■ pKi'iMui on seven! occasions Hrs al- 

legation* regarding the culpability of 
the C.I.A. have varied widely. On 
May 9, 1967, the C.I.A. was accused 
of merely concealing evidence; by May 
I Sth, Oswald and Ruhr were them* 
selves identified by Garrison as C.I.A. 
employees; on Mar 21st. the District 
Attorney stated that the C.I.A. knew 
“the name of every man invoked and 
the name of the individuals who pulled 
the triggers;*’ on May 24th, he added 
that the C.I.A. was presently hiding 
the killers* whereabouts; on November 
14th, he decided that “employees—a 
limited number—of the Central Intelli­
gence Agency of the U.S. government 
are involved in the assassination;” on 
January 31, 1968, he said on the 
Johnny Carson show that “the Central 
Intelligence Agency was deeply in- 
volved in the assassination;” and in 
February he said in an interview filmed 
for Dutch television that “President 
Kennedy was killed by dements of the 
Central Intelligence .Agency of the 
United States government,” going on 
t«> explain, “The Central Intelligence 
Agency ... had worked for a long time 
creating the tableau—-the cover scene— 
beforehand. This is standard for a Cen­
tral Intelligence Agency assassination. 
As a matter of fact, the C.LA., when 
it conducts an assassination, describes it 
as an executive action. This takes the 
sin out of it. As a matter of fact, to 
the C.I.A. employees the sin then be* 1 

. comes failing to do your job properly, 
in the executive action. Of course, even 
as I describe it. I’m conscious of the 
parallels with regard to Germany uh- 
der Hitler. What I’m talking about is 
nothing less than Fascism, which has 
arrived in America....” ‘

Just how solid the basis for these 
charges is can be deduced from Gar- • 
rison’s twenty-six-page interview in 
Playboy, which is doubtless the fullest 
and most Coherent , single presentation 
of his case to date. When he was 
pressed hy Playboy's interviewer, Eric 
Norden, for the evidence on which 
his charges of C.I.A. complicity were 
based. Garrison mentioned eight specific 
items: (1) a missing C.I.A. photo? 
graph that shows Oswald in the com- 

; pany of a C.I.A. agent in Mexico be­
fore the assassination, (2) classified 
files on David Ferrie, which “would 
indicate the existence of a conspiracy 
involving former employees of the 
C.I.A. h> kill the President,” (3) sup­
pressed autopsy X-rays and photo­
graphs of President Kennedy’s body 
and “other vital evidence,” which also 
reveal that former C.I.A. agents took 
part in the murder, (4) C.I.A. files

F.K.I. However, .is it turned out, I 
continued, (he man in the photograph 
(which was published in Volume XX 
of the Warren Commission's testimony 
and evidence) was obviously not Os­
wald but a heavyset individual who 
could n<»t be identified. The Mat! law­
yer Wcsk v J. Licbckr, who was trying 
to clarify the incident fur the Warren 
Commission, inquired of the C.LA. 1 
whether a photograph showing Oswald 
in Mexico City did in fact exist. He 
never received an answer. Garrison 
postulated that the C.I.A. had for­
warded the picture of a man who was 
not Oswald and had withheld a photo-/ 
graph that did show Oswald leaving/ 
the Cuban Embassy. Furthermore, he| 
conjectured that the most likeiy reason 
for suppressing such a photograph was 
that it revealed Oswald to he in the 

| company of another man—and since 
| the identity ••( this man was being con- 
: craled, he must have been working f<»r 
j the C.I.A. It seems unlikely that Gar- 
» rison had any knowledge of this photo- 
I graph other than what he gathered 
I from the account of it in my honk, he- 
I cause he repents the details of that ac- 
i count, including a certain erroneous de­

tail. As Liebekr, who originally (old 
me the story, pointed out a few weeks 
after “Inquest” was published, the pic- i 
Cure in question had been taken of a ! 
man in front of the Soviet Embassy in ‘ 
Mexico City, not the Cuban Embassy. 
Yet Garrison repeated the erroneous 
information (mv own) to contrive an 
ominous piece of “evidence” that was 
not simply “missing” hut nonexistent.

Garrison relied on a similar device 
in his second and third items of “evi­
dence,” asserting that files on Ferric 
and the President’s autopsy X-rays 
and photographs and other vital evi­
dence were classified because they 

“would indicate the ex­
istence of a conspiracy 
involving former cm- • 
ployccs of the C.I.A.” 
Exactly how Garrison 
could specify what 
would be indicated by . • 
evidence he had never 
viewed is left problem­
atical, but again the 
tabula rasa of missing 
evidence gives him ah 
opportunity to sketch in 

unverifiahle details of a C.I.A. conspir­
acy. (Every one** in a while, the evi­
dence proves to be existent and Garri­
son is caught in the act. For example, 
he stated in his Playboy interview that 
four frames of a film taken of the as­
sassination—frames 208-211—were 
missing from the frame-by-frame re­
production of the film -in the testimony



and cvnlcncc published by the Warren 
C'HUtmvMon, an4 hr went on tn <h:m 
th.it they frame* “reveal signs of stress 
appearing suddenly on the back of a 
Streit *gn” and tn suggest that "these 
signs of stress may very well have been 
caused by the impact of a stray bulks 
on the sign.** But frames 2OS»2ll, 
while missing from the Warren vol­
umes, are not missing from a copy of 
the Him that Life, holds, and they re* 
veal no "signs of stress.**)

In his fourth item, Garrison sup­
posedly reveals the contents of classified 
C.I.A. documents tn the National 
Archives. These documents were pre­
pared for the Warren Commission by 
the C.I.A. And although the title of 
each of these reports,—-usually refer­
ring to the general topic on which 
Commission lawyers requested that the 
C.I.A. provide information or answer 
queries—is listed in the index of Com­
mission doofmvnts, the reports them­
selves .are classified, as arc all C.I.A. 
reports containing the names of opera­
tives, informers, and foreign sources. 
Garrison customarily rattles off the 
titles of the "suppressed C.I.A. Hies,*’ 
as he calls them, and then sets forth 
their "contents" in his own terms. For 
example, in Playboy be cited Commis­
sion Document No. 931, entitled "Os­
wald’s Access to Information About 
the 11-2,” and then ominously suggest­
ed that Oswald.: was involved in the 
U-2 program. He amplified on this 
"evidence” in a speech he made after 
the Playboy intervictv appeared, stal­
ing, "The reason you can’t see that 
f Commission Document No. 931] Mr 
many years is because you will then 
realize that Lee Oswald was then

*1 working for the United States govern- 
I ment, as a C.I.A. employee, and they 

don’t want you to know that.” Garri­
son used this classified document, 
which, of course, he had not seen, to 
substantiate the charge that Oswald 
acted as a C.I.A. agent. Yer testimony 
in the Warren Report indicates that it 
may well contain information on what 
Oswald heard when, during his stat­
in the Soviet Union, he dropped in 
on the trial of the U-2 pilot Francis 
Gar)’ Powers. In any event, it seems 
highly unlikely that if the C.I.A. were 
indeed as sinister as Garrison alleges, it 
would admit in a rrpirt to the Com­
mission that Oswald was a C.I.A. 
agent, especially since its reports were 
to be read by lawyers working for 
the Commission who were not (as 
my own interviews with them dem­
onstrate) particularly inclined to be

xwvvr.
The filth item of evidence—that t>c j 

Warren Commission was never able tc , 
rbum "a secret C.I.A. memo on O>; 
wild’s activities in Russia” that was >bS 
uchcd to a State Department documrr.tj 
because the memorandum had bcea| 
^destroyed” the day after the

’ Mt—is simply untrue. While it is tn* 
out one copv of this memorandum was 
destroyed while being photocopied, an- 
ether copy was duly forwarded to the 
Commission on May S, 1964, as is ev> 
dem from Volume XVIII of the Com- 
xasjuoh*# testimony and evidence. 
When Sylvia Meagher, who has in­
dexed the twenty-six volumes of the 
Warren Commission testimony and ev- 
Kcnce, and has tried earnestly to cor* 
net the mistakes of the critics as well 
os those of the Commission, pointed 
out to Garrison that his charge was 
hosed on a fallacy, he acknowledged 
t\* error, but, even so, he went on 
iisug the nun-fact to support his charge 
that the C.I.A. was "incinerating” evi­
dence.

Bic sixth item of evidence, the iden­
tity of Oswald’s C.I.A. "babysitter,” 
was extrapolated from a purchase order 
Me ten Ford trucks. Oscar Dcshtre, 
the assistant manager of a New Or­
leans Ford agency, who wrote up the 
order on January . 20, • 1961, subse­
quently reported to the F.B.I. that his 
customers told him the trucks were to 
Nr used by an organization known as 
“'Friends.,of .Democratic Cuba.” Des- 
kme listed the purchaser of the trucks 
xs ’Oswald” (no first name given) 
and Mid that the individual with "Os­
wald” called himself Joseph Moore. 
When F.B.I. agents asked Desbue 
iXxit the incident, he said that he 
o^ld "neither describe nor identify 
either of the men.” Garrison believes, 
however, that the purchase was made 
hv the C.I.A., and that Moore, who 
^ never been located, was in fact 
Oswald's C.I.A. chaperon. It is pos- 
<xt, of course, that Moore was 
r: C.I.A. "babysitter” of some 
Oswald, but in 1961, at the 
raw the purchase order was 
£_.ed out, Lee Harvey Oswald 
was working at the Belorussian 
xicie and Television Factory in 
M^k.

The seventh item of evidence, con- 
cerang a C.I.A. "courier,” refers to 
IXxuld Phiktus Norton, the hank em- 
Scnler and night-club entertainer who 
had been thoroughly discredited ns a 
wxness and was jettisoned by Garrison 
feksself even before he gave the Play- 
m interview. .

GirrNws s "ehneher,” the .vortion 
:. a: me ge\\•. av.KHt has not revealed to 
? m anv information’ of the C.f.AA 
^xn^cKv in the assjvMn.nmn, is a 
perfect example of Garrison*# own 
fand of logic, in which the fact that 
he has not found or been given any 
evidence of C.I.A. complicity is itself

I prof that the C.I.A. is withholding 
evidence of its guilt.

Garrison has also charged that the 
press ha* furtively controlled the 

news as a means of suppressing known 
txts about the assassination. "Behind 
the facade of earnest inquiry into the 
assassination is a thought-control proj­
ect «u the best tradition of *1984,* ” he 
has wntten. "Because of their role in 
the Establishment and their failure to 
conduct an effective inquiry, major 
news agencies have a vested interest in 
oumtnining public ignorance?* Most 
of what Garrison has had to say on this 
subject has been vague philippics, hut 
»tt his half-hour N.K.C. rebuttal he did 
give five specific examples of news sup- 
pr«®eon, and they arc worth examining 
•ox detail. Of "powerful news agencies,” 
Garrison alleged:

They du not tell you that Lee Harvey 
Oswald’# fingerprints were not found on 
the sun which was supposed to have 
kuled the President.

And they do not tell you that nitrate 
tests exonerated Lee Oswald from the 
Actual shooting by showing that he had 
wet fifed a tide that day.

And they do not tell you that it was 
virtually impossible tor Oswald to have 
taken h’S fingerprints off the gun. hidden 
the cun and gone down four flights of 
Jti:r$ by the time he was seen on the 
secund floor.

Above all they do not tell you of the 
overwhelming eyewitness testimony that 
shots were coming from behind (he stone 
wail ua (he grassy knoll....

Hu have net been told that I^e 
Oswald was tn the employ ot U.S. intel- 
Ljpeac/’ agencies, but this was the case.

It is true that the public had not 
been told any of these things, except By 

Garrison, but there is a good rea­
son for that. All five of the 
chargetare either false ar captious.

Fingerprints were found on 
the rifle "which was supposed tn 
have killed the President,” hut 

tic prints could not be positively identi- 
&d. Sebastian F. Latona, a nationally 
rwi'gnized fingerprint expert, testified 
heture the Warren Commission that 
because of the unpolished finish of the 
s:fl:e, which allowed it to absorb m<»:$. 
V-zc, it was highly unlikely that an iden- 
tfiohk fingerprint would have been left 
cn the weapon. Contrary to the pap- 
war impression regarding fingerprints,
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Laton;* noted, thee are usually diyern- 
ible onh ««n highlv polnhrd surfaces. 
What Garrison d<»cs not say is that a 
palmprint w;*s discovered on (he under­
side of the barrel of the rifle in question 
and that three different experts posi­
tively identified it as (bwald’s.

Garrison** assertion that the nitrate 
tests “exonerated” Oswald is equally 
questionable. In the tests to which 
Garrison referred, the Dallas police 
made paraffin casts of Oswald’s hands 
and right check, and these casts were

than half the witnesses thought (hr shot* 
originated in some spit other than the 
P(pi\it<»f) Budding, but onlv a few <»f 
(he earwmivsvs thought the shots came 
from thr direction of the stone wall.

Finally, the ^asyrtion that Oswald 
WaCi C.L/L agent, as ha* already Jne-rr 
shown, was based on Garrison's own 
private interpretation <»( “mixsing” of 
classified documents that he had never 
seen. Of the five examples of “news sup­
pression” that Garrison cited, then, not 
one was based on accurate information.*

J. l.dg.H H»*«’Vcr before flu- assisxina- 
t*'H. Gannon charged last December

unable to obtain, proves (hat Oswald 
telephoned the Dallas field office of the 
F.B.I. five davs before the a^Mxsina- 
tion and gave details of the plot, which 
were then forwarded hy interbureau 
telegram to Hoover in Washington.

trates were found on the casts of both 
hands hut not on the cast (if his check. 

/The test, however, in no way proves 
that Oswald did or did not fire a rifle. 
The nitrates found heed not have come 
from gunpowder*, many other sub­
stances—-tobacco, matches, or urine--- 
will leave such residues. Conversely, 
the absence of nitrates indicates just as 
little, because a rifle (which, unlike a 
revolver, ha* no gap between the 
chamber and the barrel) is not as like­
ly to leave nitrate traces on the cheek. 
In fact, the rifle in question was experi­
mentally fired three times by an F.B.I. 
agent and no traces of nitrates were de­
tected on his hands or cheek. Accord­
ing to one F.B.I. expert, Cortlandt 
Cunningham, the so-called paraffin test

cy” is that the federal government—* 
through its agents Lyndon Johnson, 
Robert Kennedy, J. Edgar Hoover, 
Earl Warren, and Ramsey Clark—has 
been involved in a sinister plot to quasi* 
his investigation. It would have been 
difficult to gainsay Garrison's imputa­
tion of federal obstruction if he had 
charged merely that thr government 
was hindering his ease* Certainly feder­
al agencies have been less than coopera­
tive, and important federal officials, in­
cluding Attorney General Clark, have 
openly (and often harshly) criticized 
the New Orleans investigation. But 
Garrison's allegations have gone far lx--;
yond the charge of interference in this 

is completely unreliable, and its princi- , yny. He has accused the federal gov- 
pal use in police work is s'mply to in-, ermnent of conspiring to wreck his in­
timidate suspects; it produces more • vestigation specifically because it harbors 
apprehension than valid evidence, Gar-|n motive of its own in concealing the 
rison's suggestion that such tests could ' truth about the assassination-, and he
have proved that Oswald “had n<»t 
fired a rifle that day” plays on the gul­
libility of the general public regarding 
the reliability of scientific-sounding data.

As for Garrison's statement that it 
was “virtually impossible” for Oswald 
to have been on the second floor of the 
Depository Building a few minutes aft­
er the assassination, it, too, is specious. 
A Secret Service agent, simulating Os­
wald’s movements, reached the second 
flour from the sixth in ode minute and 
eighteen seconds. In any case, it is im- 
possible to ascertain exactly what time 
Oswald was seen on the second floor; 
it could have hern as long as five min­
utes after the assassination.

Garrison's next assertion—that the 
press failed to report that there was 
“overwhelming eyewitness testimony” 
that the shots came from behind a stone 
wall—is also sophistical. None of the 
hundred or so Warren Commission wit­
nesses who testified on the matter or were 
questioned by the F.B.I. said that they 
saw* a rifle being fired from behind the 
Stone wall. The /7/rwitness testimony, < 
which Js undependable in determining i 
the source of any shots where there is 1 
a possibility of echoes, was divided. More •

has levelled his accusation in no un­
certain terms the United States;
government—meaning the present; 
administration, Lyndon Johnson's ad-' 
ministration—is obstructing the wives-; 
tigatum—any investigation. 1: has con-' 
ccakd the true facts—to be blunt about 
it—to protect the individual*, involved
in the assassination of John Kennedy.” 
In other words, he is charging that the 
government knows the truth and, in 
concealing it, is itself c«»n- 
spinng to protect the con­
spirators.

So far, Garrison has of­
fered only two specific items 
of “evidence” to sup|M»rt
this charge. The first item 
is the photograph of the as­
sassination site showing a 
man with a closed fist; which by Gar­
rison’s surmise conceals the bullet that 
killed the President. Efam this conjec­
ture he goes <*n to postulate that the 
man in the photograph is a federal 
agent, (hat the bullet has been turned 
over to the federal government, and 
that the government consequently 
knows the assassin’s" identity. The sec­
ond item of Evidence he mentions is a

President Johnson had “actively con­
cealed evidence about the murder of 
his predecessor.” When a reporter
asked him what evidence he had that 
such a telegram ever existed, he an- 
swerrd, “If um and I were in a closed 
room, I could prove it. But I’m not go­
ing to allow any evidence to get out 
now.” His evidence, it later turned.out, 
was simply a story that Mark Lam* had 
told him.

Apart from such speculation hy Gar­
rison and Lane, the charge of federal 
complicity is based almost solely on the 
fact lh.it there is government secrecy. 
According to Garrison's logic, the gov­
ernment would not classify information 
pertinent to the assassination unless it 
had something to hide. Garrison has 
jK-rsktvntly exploited p»pular suspicions 
about secrecy, accusing those who 
would, in Ins estimation, benefit most 
from the maintenance of such secrecy. 
For example, after noting that part of 
the Warren Commission’s documents 
arc classified in the National Archives, 
Garrison claimed on a Texas television 
show last December, “They destroyed 
evidence in every possible way. The 
President of the United States, the man 
who has the must to gain, the man who 
gained more than any other human * 
from the assassination, is the man who 
issued the executive order concealing 
vital evidence for seventv-five years so 
that we can't look at it, so that you
can’t look at it, so that no American

* ran see i» for kventv-five

executive order by Lyndon 
Johnson, the man who 
gained the most from the 
assassination.’’

has ever hern issued. .Many 
investigative files are with*

held from use by law for swcnty^fivc 
years—a number arbitrarily selected t<» 
exceed (he life-spin <»f persons likely to 
he mentioned :n the reports—in order 
tn safeguard confidential information 
(such as tax returns), to protect con­
fidential informers, and to avoid cin- 
barrassing innocent persons mentioned 
incidentally. But in the case of the 
Warren Commission's documents Me- 
George Bundy, acting on behalf of



?«J&<

President |«du»M’n, sent a ^kcu! re- 
quvM to (he Archive of (lie Coiled 
$Uk< th.it the sunti-Hvc-vc.*r Km be 
waned wherever poruble and much of 
die material be opened to the puMw 
Following guhkhnes apptoved by Hun- 
dr, all the agencies involved in the in­
vestigation were to review their-files 
and declassify everything except pages 
Containing the names of confidential in- 
fonnenq inhumation damaging to’in-

media faded to broadcast Mine w 
(tilths about the aswsMtMtion and the

the agencies' opraiing procedures. 
• There was to be a periodic review k 

all the agencies concerned. Bv the time 
Garrison bad begun his own investiga­
tion, virtually all the documents that 
could be <lcck«i(id according to these 
guidelines had been opened to public 
scrutiny. Garrison's churn in PUx-b^x
that “any document the C.LA. wanted 
classified was shunted into the Archives 
without examination** by the Commis­
sion is simple untrue. All the relevant 
dixumu nts relating to the inquiry which 
are now in the .Archives were sent 
there by the Warren Commission after

a saltatory advance is made from miss­
ing or nonexistent evidence to the 
fantasy of C.I.A. complicity in the as- 
snMiniMii. For GarriM»n, the C.I.A. 
epitomizes all that is feared in govern­
mental secrecy: an invisible govern­
ment, answerable to no one. with un­
limited resources and unlimited power. 
Since all its acts arc veiled in secrecy, 
it may be pustulated to Ik the “real 
force*’ behind anv event. The govern­
ment, Garrison claims, "i/ the C.I.A. 
ami the Pentagon**-'—an elite that per- 
petuates its power by concealing the 
truth about the assassination, and creat­
ing, through the “manipulation of (he

I’rCMlcnt. Indeed, earlier Harns Mir- 
vets showed that at least thirty per cent 
of the population believed from the out- 
set that Oswald had not acted entirely 
alone, and continued to believe this 
after the Warren Commission ren­
dered its verdict. Moreover, Harris 
concluded from the questionnaires filled 
out by his respondents immediately 
after the Warren Re|wt was issued 
that eleven |ki cent of the population.

mass media,’
ccntratian camp of the mind.'

calls “a con

the Warren Report was published. 
Must of the C.I.A. rcpirts were pre­
pared to answer specific questions put 
to the Agency by Commission lawyers, 
and there is no reason to assume that 

•they went unread.
The distinguishing mark of the para­

noid style, Hofstadter writes, is “(he 
curious leap in imagination” between 
fact and fantasy which is made at some 
critical point in an argument to cover a 
gap in reasoning. Consider in this light 
the following remarks by Garrison, 
taken from one of the many speeches 
he delivered during the fall of l%7:

AS his investigation continued, Gar- 
XX rison appeared to become increas­
ingly obsessed with governmental se­
crecy, and less directly concerned with 
the issues <»f his court case. His obsession 
with the “second conspiracy** might be 
more easily dismissed if it were not for 
the fact that a considerable portion of 
the population apjwars to believe his 
claims. The extent of his popular sup­
port leads one to wonder if there may 
not be some political calculation behind' 
his choice of chimeras.

Early in 1967, before the New* 
Orleans investigation became public 
knowledge, a pill conducted by Louis 
Harris and .Associates indicat­

innocence to Ik butchered as Oswald was 
with no concern, no interest? Which ab 
lows the guilty, the murderers to walk 
the streets, knowing without any question 
w ho they are, knowing what happened, is 
this a Great Society? U it a Great So­
ciety which causes blackouts in news cen­
ters like New York when there’s a de­
velopment in’the case?... Is this a Great

ed that same, forty-four per 
cent of the American people

m.iy be considered “chronic doubters 
who tend to feel that the ’real’ story 
about almost anv important public 
event is never quite told.” The fact 
that there was a marked increase— 
from thirty-one per cent to forty-four, 
according to Harris surveys—in the 
number of people who believed in ^ 
conspiracy when the Warren Coinmis-

' sum became the subject of heated Con*’ 
■ troversy, owing to the publication in 

the latter half of 1966 of a number of 
books and articles by critics of the Re­
port, may reflect a certain resistance by 
the general public against accepting a 
purported “truth” that is neither clear- 
cut nor obviously irrefutable. The idea 
that even a few points in the Warren 
Report were subject to dispute, or that 
even a few of its facts could be differ­
ently interpreted, probably led many 
people to reject, or at least doubt, the 
over-all conclusion that the Commission 
bad put forward so emphatically. In 
any event, the change in public opinion 
seems to have been substantial after 
Garrison appeared on the scene. Be­

tween February and May of 
1967, Harris sirveys indi­
cated nearly half (sixteen out 
of thirty-five per cent, to be 
exact) of the people who had

• thought that the murder of 
President Kennedy was the 
result of a conspiracy. In 

May, 1967, shortly after 
Garrison had announced the

Society which monitors your phone if it [discovery of a plot, bad gone 
has the slightest bit ot curiosity about ‘ on to arrest Chv Shaw,and had charged 
V»u? This is not a Great Society—this is 4hc C.I.A. with omerabne evidence, 
a pane.™. S-wr,. » Harris indicated'that »Mt-
spice (he up service to populism... is so . ■ • » • ii-
morally threadbare that the futures tif stx lHr ffllt “l tflc American public
yvur children arc in danger.

Here “the curious leap in imagina­
tion” is made between the fact that 
suite investigative hies are still classified 
and.the fantasy that the government is 
protecting the assassins by censoring the 
news, monitoring telephone calls, and 
threatening the futures of children. (It 
* worth noting, incidentally, that the 
image of “inmKcncv .. . butchered as 
Oswald was” creates complications in 
the case of Chy Shaw, who was, after 
all, indicted U a conspiracy that in-

now believed chat the assassination had 
been carried out by a conspiracy. A 
third Harns survey, taken in Septem­
ber, revealed that despite the (act that 
Garrison’s inquiry had produced no 
tangible results, sixty per cent of (he 
people still believed that Kennedy had 
been killed by a conspiracy. To be sure.

believed that Oswald was 
the lope assassin were now 
changing (heir minds. In oth­
er words, once Garrison be­

gan issuing his charges some thirty mil­
lion .Americans who had apparently 
been neither predisposed to believe in <] 
conspiracy nor moved by earlier criti­
cism of the Warren Report started 
having second thoughts on the question 
of a lone assassin.

In presenting to (he public his 
own conclusions about the assassination 
of President Kennedy, Garrison has 
enjoyed some strong advantages over 
all other critics of the Warren Com­
mission. The first and most obvious is 
simply the authority of his office: he is

it is by no means clear that Garrison ^e district attorney of a major Amer- 
was chiefly responsible for effecting th’is ^n city. Garrison has been able to 
remarkable change in public opinion, make news at, will, merely by submit* 
It can be argued that a considerable ^g charges issuing jubpicnaJ, and 
number of people are naturally dis­
posed. to make a conspiratorial inter-
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(or example, that “at 12:4 5 r.M. mi

broadcast a wanted bulletin for Os­
wald”— c<»uhl he demonstrably false. 
Still another important benefit that 
Garrison derives (ruin being a public 
prosecutor with a ease |>cnding is the 
right tn refuse to.divulge the evidence 
on‘which his charges arc based. And 
Garrison has exercised this-right with 
stunning effect, particularly in the Play
box interview. ample,. ilk
statement that “we know from incon­
trovertible evidence in our possession 
who the real Clay Bertrand is—and 
we will prove it in court.” Since Gar­
rison has charged that Clay Shaw 
used the alias of Clay Bertrand, this is 
an extremely important claim, hut al­
though the question of the identity o( 
Chy Bertrand was a central issue in the 
perjury trial of Dean /kndrews, which 
took place well after the Playboy inter­
view was conducted. Garrison failed to 
introduce any evidence nt that time’ 
Concerning it. Later, a source in Gar-I 
risort-S office suggested that the onlyj 
evidence to which Garrison could have 
been referring in the Playboy interview 
was a library card taken out under 
the name Clay Bertrand ami hearing 
Clay Shaw’s former business address. 
This card hardly qualifies as incon­
trovertible evidence. For one thing, the 
card turned up well after Shaw was ar­
rested, and, for some reason, bore no . 
date of. issuance or expiration. For an­
other, the signature on the card was 1 
definitely not in Chy Shaw’s hand—a 
fact that Garrison’s own staff con-1,

reennedtamn with the V.S.S.R. and 
C^Mia's Cuba.” Am! he. f"<s on 40 de­
clare that this k not mere speculation, 
insisting, '’. . . we know enough about 
the key individuals invoked in the con­
spiracy— Latins and Americans alike-— 
to know that this was their motive for 
the murder rd John Kennedy/* T<> 
those who expect a momentous event 
to have some significant cause, Gar­
rison’s explanation naturally sounds 
more logical than the explanation that 
a lone assassin acted out of personal 
disaffection.

Moreover, Garrison has found ready 
allies, eager to pnucIvUK on hn behalf, 
among dissident political writers. Hk 
charge that there is a conspiracy be­
tween the government and the mass 
media tn conceal the truth (nun the 
people accords perfectly, after all, with 
what such journals see as their raison 
d’etre. It is therefore hardly surprising 
to find his speeches printed verbatim in 
such pipers as the Lu Angeles Free 
Preu, and to find his portrait on the 
cover of 'Ratnfarts, with the words:

“Who Appointed Ramsey Clark, who

: C.I.A.? Who controls the F.B.L? Who 
controls the Archives where this evidence 
h kicked up fur so lung that it is unlike­
ly that (here is embody in this room who 
will be alive when it is released? This ii 
really your property and the property of 
the people of this country. Who has the 
arrogance and the brass to prevent rhe 
people from seeing that evidence? Who 
indeed? T he one man who ha* profited 
most from the Assassins- . .
tion—your friendly Presi­
dent, Lyndon Johnson!**

Among Garrison’s most
..... -..... —............- .................... ; • ; ardent supporters is the 
firmed. In other words, it appears that, Couwilor, the bimonthly 
someone other than Clay Shaw filled , ofJirjl) j)(lirn;1| „, .!ie CitH 
out a library card under the alias that J zc||s. Council of Louisiana,
Garrison has claimed Shaw used and ' w|)ic)t (l|(m, a Cirv-Ui.,',;.«,’ 
pul Shaw’s former business address oni of „„„, tw„ |,(mi!wi and 
,f’ ■ sixty thousand, and which

Garrison has also enjoyed the ad- aclivdy campaigns against 
Communism, the suppres­
sion of news bv the mass

vantage of what might be called stra­
tegic plausibility. As Hannah Arendt 
points out in her essay “Truth and 
Politics,” the liar is usually more per­
suasive than die truthtcllcr, simply be­
cause he can fashion his facts to meet 
his audience’s expectations. Since Gar­
rison is under no compulsion to reveal 
his evidence, there is nothing to prevent 
him from contriving his own explana­
tion of the assassination. Whereas nei­
ther the Warren Commission nor its 
critics could offer a definite motive for 
die murder of the President, Garrison 
can..He scares categorically in Playboy, 
^President Kennedy was killed for one

media (supposedly con­
trolled by Zionist interests), •“ 
race mongreh/auen (a plot aided by 
the CJ.A. and the Rothschuus', and 
the insidious intrusion of federal author­
ity info the sacred domain of states* 
right*. That Garrison bad been 
“(ought by Sterns Newhouse papers, 
and Agnes Meyer** (i.e., the N.B.C. 
Affiliate in New Orleans WDSU-TV; 
the Times-Picayune and &ates~/tem; 
and the Washington Post and .Veto- 
week) was for the Councilor sufficient 
reason to lend Garrison its enthusiastic

i* much
!<* hide.** The Cauncilnr goes along 
with most of the details nt the plot the­
ory outlined tn Raw farts, differing

muniMs, rather than right-wing ex­
tremists, were Behind the conspiracy. 
(Perry Russo, alw.11 s accommodating, 
told the ('niwilor in an exclusive in-

GirrisanS 
champions in

And a

mute

Ferric was really 
Gdhwr of Che

has .lisa found 
highly reflected

journals that pride themselves on their 
intellectual credentials—notably the 
New York Review of Pooh, whkh has 
rejected the Warren Commission’* 
conclusions because the Commission's 
investigation was defective but has em­
braced Garrison’s investigation despite 
its far more glaring defects. Professor 
Richard Popkin, m a lengthy defense 
of Garrison’s investigation in the AVw 
York Review^ aigites that Garrison 
should be given a “fair hearing” in 
court, and not have Ids case “pre­
judged” hy the press. He claims that 
whde Garrison has "studiously avoided 
any discussion of Shaw and the spe­
cific evidence against him.” the press 
has interviewed “potential witnesses/’ 
evaluated the evidence, made “charges 

against (he District r\t- 
torney and his office . \. in 
effect, trying the case out’ 
of court.” The “wave 0/ 
attacks in the press and 
TV” against Garrison,

tn

through 
light of

Popkin contends, “surely 
prejudices a fair trial.” He 
concludes that n«» investi­
gation ot Garrison is nec­
essary, fur “tf the evidence 
is as contrived and cock­
eyed as the press and TV 
allege, they should expect ’ 
that twelve jurors along

it.’ It is true that. the*
a defendant nut to X* pre*

judged is a fundamental principle of 
jurisprudence. And pre-trial publicity, 
fy‘ prejudicing public opinion, can cer­
tainly deny the defendant his right to 
a fair hearing. Jim Garrison, how­
ever, is not the defendant. Chy Shaw 
is. The rights of the defendant have 
been established precisely to counter­
balance the powers of the state. Pop­
kin’s plea that die press suspend scrutiny



Walter Sheridan, of N.B.C., have 
Mated th.it in sejuratv inquiries they 
discovered at least six witnesses who 
Mid that they had been ottered bribes, 
blackmailed, or otherwise coerced by 
Garrison's representatives. All were, in 
one-way or another, vulnctahlc people. 

I William Gurvich said that while he was 
1 working for Garrison he saw the way 
I the |»«»wcrs of a district attorney's of- 
1 five could be used “to intimidate and 

covrer witnesses.” Pupkin intimates that 
Sheridan and Gurvich may have had 
some ulterior motive in revealing in­
formation about Garrison's mode of 
operation. One can, as the British phi­
losopher A. J. Ayer points out, always 
sustain one's beliefs in the face of ap­
parently hostile evidence if one is pre­
pared to make the necessary ad-hoc as­
sumptions, and in this case suppirtcrs of 
Garrison seem all too ready to assume, 
that everyone who criticizes Garrison's 
conduct is part of a plot to conceal the 
(ruth. But such rationalization explains 
nothing. In (he year I have been study­
ing Garrison’s investigation and have 
hail access to his office, (he only evi­
dence I have seen or heard about that 
could connect Clay Shaw with the as­
sassination has been fraudulent—some I 
drvixd hy Garrison himself and some' 
cynically culled from criminals or the 
emotionally unstable.-To fail to report 
this information so that Garrison might 
have a “fair hearing” in Court could 
preclude the possibility of the defend­
ant’s ever receiving hit fair hearing in 

.court.
To see the issue of the assassination 

as of such overwhelming impirtance 
that the juridical rights of the defend­
ant may be neglected, the Constitu­
tional rights of witnesses disdained, the 
scrutiny and criticism of the prcsA sus- 
|M-ndcd, and the traditional methods of 
the state's prosecution ignored is to ac­
cept a curious sort of ethics. It is to say 
that in a.search for (acts the means can 
be disregarded if the ends—the facts— 
arc of enough consequence. Fred’ 
Powlcdgc, writing in (lie New Repute 
he, suggests the dilemma: “...I had । 
the irrational feeling that he [Garri-* 
son] was on to something. I had the1 
equally startling feeling that it did not. 
really matter if Garrison were paranoid, 
opportunistic, flamboyant, or if his wit­
nesses were not candidates for Th* 
Defenders, Was he right?” But can 
the process of establishing the truth ever 
be separated from its end product— 
the truth? Facts must be selected, in­
terpreted, and arranged in (he context 
provided by other information before 
they take on meaning. Factual evidence 
can be established as truth, as Hannah

and criticism ci t^v mct'AS S whuh 
G;<rrNm t> p>M-<r^^ <*\kiKv ami 
bringing th<’ cx^ ^) trul wvu'J, i| it 
were taken tv bean, undermine .1 de­
fendant's kprxtutv pr<w\hMt against 
the pissbibh' vt .1 pniscvutoA usmg 
hij power and ivo'tiavs tv tabrnaic 
evidence and uuimdate witness. 
Moreover, Fhykn's cvwn^’ti that 
Garrison Kx$ ‘'muvUh^v avoided** 

' discussing the evidence 5 drangenu-1 
ous, at best. IX* txt s$ that an 
interview’ that Pon'kin had with Per­
ry Russo, Gatn^vn** star - witness 
against CUv Shaw, was arranged by 
the Dstikt Attorney him«lt» It was 
Garrison, u*\ who told rtpmtrs that 
he had found Jack Ruhr's coded tele­
phone number in both Shaw's and 
Oswald's'’address books, and repeat­
ed the allegation on rckv^xm and to 
newspaper reporters even after it was 
shown to be false-. It was Garrison who 
stated in the Narie^i Observer, 
“There is no wav that Clay Shaw 
Can get an aowkuL" It was Garrison 
who allowed Mark Lane and William 
Turner to pbotvstat evidence in his 
files. And it was Garrison who, in his 
Phtyboy Interview and on his subse­
quent cmh-Msv,im tour, made numer­
ous references cither to essence in the 
Shaw case or to Shaw himself (includ­
ing the demonstrable hJxhixd that 
Shaw was with President Kennedy “on 
an airplane flight in 1.963"). Indeed, 
Garrison has gone on about the case in 
speeches, radio talk shows, television 
programs press conferences, and inter­
views almost without pause. Of course,- 
most of the evidence Garrison has dis­
cussed is spurious, but surely chat makes 
it all the more imperative for the press 
nut to waive ks nsix^didnv for ex­
amining it closely.

Pupkin's notion that there s no need 
for the press to scrutinize Gankin's 
techniques for recruiting witnesses and 
assembling evidence because if the evi­
dence is contrived a lodge and jury 
will see through •: and “desran Garri­
son at the trial" shows an unusual con­
fidence in the legal process. While it is 
true that a judge and iurv can detect 
Contradictions in testimony and other 
incongruous evidence, there is no cer­
tainty at ail that they can uncover 
perjury that has been svsfenutkally ar­
ranged for, with vac perjurer corrob­
orating another's testimony, or that they 
can recognize artfully fabricated “tacts” 
purposely designed to fit into the pat­
tern of evidence. Exposure 0: such sys­
tematic fraud would, in fact, depend- 
on an outside investigation of the pros­
ecutor’s means and methods. Gync 
Roberts, of the New York Tenet, and

Arendt points mil, only “through testi­
mony hr m wiln.-vcx — notoriously un­
reliable —ami bi records, documents, 
and monuments, all of which can be 
suspected as forgeries.” If one has rea­
son to doubt the process hy which 
“facts” have been ascertained or Con­
firmed, how can one ever be certain 
that they bear any relation to the truth, 
or even that the “facts” themselves are 
not outright fabrications? Question* 
such as these have been taken under 
consideration by a federal court in New 
Orleans. On May 28th, United States 
District Judge Frederick Hecht, after 
considering a fortv-fivc-page complaint 
from Clay Shaw's attorneys alleging 
that Garrison had conducted a “reign 
of terror by 'he misuse and abuse of the 
piurn of the public office,” issued a 
temporary restraining order that pro­
hibited Garrison from an, further 
prosecution of Clay Shaw until a fed­
eral court has had the opportunity to* 
decide the merits of the charges filed 
against Garrison.

In view of the shortcomings of the 
Warren Commission’s investigation, it 
becomes apparent that there is no easy 
way to devise a process for ultimately 
answering such complex and elusive 
historical questions as those provoked by 
the assassination of President Kennedy. 
Indeed, there can be no certainty that 
such a process is even within our in­
stitutional means. But there can be 
certainty that as long as the means by 
which an investigation has heed con­
ducted remain suspect the (ruth wjll 
never he fully established.

—Edward Jay Epstein
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